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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
Members of the Board of Regents 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System  
Versailles, Kentucky 
 
Secretary of Finance and  
Administration Cabinet of the  
Commonwealth of Kentucky 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and fiduciary activities of 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System (the System), a component unit of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the System’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities and fiduciary activities of the System, as of June 30, 2021 and 
2020, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the System has adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary 
Activities, for the year ended June 30, 2021. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion 
and analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the System's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the other information, such as the listing of the Officers of the KCTCS 
Board of Regents, KCTCS Board of Regents, and KCTCS President’s Cabinet is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The listing of the Officers of the KCTCS Board of Regents, KCTCS Board of Regents, and KCTCS President’s 
Cabinet has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, 
and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 7, 2021 on 
our consideration of the System’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.   That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the System’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Lexington, Kentucky 
October 7, 2021 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Kentucky Community and Technical College System (KCTCS) 
financial statements provides an overview of the financial position and activities of KCTCS for the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, with comparative data to fiscal year 2019. This discussion has been prepared by 
management and is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the related 
notes which follow this section.  The financial statements, notes and this discussion and analysis are the 
responsibility of management. 

KCTCS reports operational (proprietary/business-type) activity in the Statement of Net Position, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the Financial 
Statements.  

KCTCS reports fiduciary activity in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, Statement of Changes in Fiduciary 
Net Position, and Notes to the Financial Statements. These statements are presented as a result of adopting 
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and retroactively to 
June 30, 2020.  KCTCS’ fiduciary activity is comprised of a postemployment benefit trust (KCTCS OPEB trust) 
that provides health insurance coverage to retirees and spouses.  

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (US GAAP) and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB).  Accordingly, the accrual basis of accounting is used whereby revenues are recognized when earned 
(when the service is provided) and expenses are recognized when incurred (when the service is received), 
regardless of when cash is exchanged. 

Financial Highlights 

• •• KCTCS' financial position remained solid at June 30, 2021, with assets and deferred outflows of $1.4
billion and liabilities and deferred inflows of $562.1 million. Net position, which represents KCTCS'
residual interest in assets and deferred outflows after liabilities and deferred inflows are deducted, 
was $833.6 million at June 30, 2021 or 59.7 percent of total assets and deferred outflows.   

• Total assets and deferred outflows increased $92.6 million or 7.1 percent.  The increase is primarily
due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $88.3 million and an increase in investments of
$22.0 million. Cash and cash equivalents increased primarily as a result of funds received under the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act ($20.9 million), Coronavirus Response
and Supplemental Appropriations (CRRSA) Act ($72.3 million) and American Rescue Plan (ARP)
Act ($16.0 million) to help offset the costs of the COVID-19 pandemic. Investments increased as a
result of increases in the market value of investments. Total liabilities and deferred inflows decreased
by $77.0 million or 12.0 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows.  The decrease is primarily due
to a decrease in deferred inflows of $65.3 million related to pension and other postemployment
benefits, a decrease in leases payable of $16.0 million and a decrease in net pension liability of $3.8
million.

• Total net position increased $169.6 million primarily due to unrestricted revenue over expenses of
$131.3 million and an increase in restricted expendable net assets of $4.6 million.

• Operating revenues were $229.8 million and operating expenses were $549.2 million, resulting in a
loss from operations of $319.4 million.  When nonoperating revenues of $465.3 million (including
$170.5 million in state appropriations) and other revenues of $23.7 million are added, this resulted in
an increase of $169.6 million in net position.
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Reporting Entity 

The Kentucky Community and Technical College System (KCTCS) is a component unit of the Commonwealth 
of Kentucky (Commonwealth). KCTCS was created in May 1997 by The Higher Education Improvement Act 
(House Bill 1) of the Kentucky General Assembly. Since its creation, KCTCS has become the largest provider 
of postsecondary education and workforce training in the Commonwealth. 

KCTCS provides both credit and non-credit education and training primarily to Kentucky residents. In fact, for 
most Kentuckians, higher education begins with KCTCS at one of its 16 colleges through traditional and 
distance education.  Offering over 12,000 online course sections annually, KCTCS is the largest provider of 
face-to-face, hybrid and/or online learning in the state.  

KCTCS provides high quality, relevant educational programs and responsive business and industry training 
throughout the Commonwealth.  Since its inception, KCTCS has provided the lowest tuition in the 
Commonwealth through a single, straightforward tuition and charge structure.  KCTCS is committed to 
providing the best value in higher education in Kentucky. 

KCTCS offers a variety of certificates, diplomas, and associate degree programs as well as customized 
training programs for business and industry. Through the Kentucky Fire Commission and the Kentucky Board 
of Emergency Medical Services, KCTCS provides fire and rescue training, certifications for first responders 
and emergency medical technicians, and licenses paramedics and ambulance services throughout the state. 
All KCTCS colleges are independently accredited by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools 
Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC). 

KCTCS has 16 colleges with over 70 locations strategically positioned throughout the Commonwealth - from 
Maysville to Somerset and from Ashland to Paducah - KCTCS is accessible and convenient to all Kentuckians. 
KCTCS colleges offer over 115 programs (111 technical programs) with associated credentials including 
certificates, diplomas and associate degrees in Arts, Science, Applied Science and Fine Arts.  The single 
most popular area of study is the baccalaureate transfer program, which allows a student to earn an associate 
degree through KCTCS and transfer those credits to any Kentucky university. 

While continuing to emphasize its historical mission to provide general education, KCTCS has increased its 
focus on occupational and technical education and workforce training. KCTCS is Kentucky's primary provider 
of workforce training, delivering programs and services that address the full spectrum of needs faced by 
business and industry, as well as programs for individuals who want to learn new or upgrade current skills. 
These programs include apprenticeships, clinical experiences, and experience in the workplace to develop a 
graduate ready to enter the workforce starting their technical career.  

Through Workforce Solutions units, KCTCS colleges deliver high quality, cost-effective workforce education 
including assessment services, customized training, and apprenticeship support. KCTCS Workforce Solutions 
serves Kentucky’s key business and industry sectors ensuring these companies remain globally competitive 
and contribute to the economic viability of the Commonwealth. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, 
KCTCS colleges developed and deployed training for 1108 companies representing 33,216 enrollments. 
KCTCS also provided assessment services for 3,685 companies representing 43,277 individuals assessed.  

KCTCS also provides educational enrichment opportunities through community development classes related 
to personal improvement, cultural activities, and fine arts. These classes are tailored to meet local needs and 
provide opportunities for Kentuckians to connect, learn and grow in their communities. 
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Statement of Net Position:  The Statement of Net Position reports financial condition at the end of the fiscal 
year and shows all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows. Assets and liabilities are generally 
reported at cost; except for investments which are reported at fair value.  Condensed Statements of Net Position 
are shown below as of June 30 (in thousands): 
 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
 

 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021:  Total assets and deferred outflows amounted to $1.4 billion as of June 30, 
2021.  The largest asset class was investment in capital assets (net of depreciation) of $751.5 million, or 53.8 
percent of total assets and deferred outflows.  Cash and cash equivalents totaled $430.5 million or 30.8 
percent of total assets and deferred outflows, and endowments totaled $86.9 million or 6.2 percent of total 
assets and deferred outflows.  During the year, total assets and deferred outflows increased by $92.6 million, 
primarily due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $88.3 million and an increase in investments of 
$22.0 million. 
 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows totaled $562.1 million as of June 30, 2021. Net pension liability was $239.3 
million or 42.6 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows. Capital leases totaled $142.2 million or 25.3 
percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows. Liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by $77.0 million or 
12.0 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows.  The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in deferred 
inflows of $65.3 million related to pension and other postemployment benefits, a decrease in leases payable 
of $16.0 million and a decrease in net pension liability of $3.8 million. 
 
Total net position was $833.6 million as of June 30, 2021 which included net investment in capital, $610.1 
million (73.2 percent); restricted $207.5 million (24.9 percent); and unrestricted $16.0 million (1.9 percent).  
Restricted net position is subject to externally imposed restrictions governing its use.  Unrestricted net position 
is not subject to externally imposed restrictions, however, substantially all unrestricted net position has been 
designated for support of instructional programs, initiatives, and working capital needs.  Total net position 
increased $169.6 million primarily due to unrestricted revenue over expenses of $131.3 million and an 
increase in restricted expendable net assets of $4.6 million. 
 
 
 

2021 2020 2019

Assets and Deferred Outflows

Current assets 386,976$      301,355$      273,330$      

Noncurrent assets 971,329        969,873        948,809        

Deferred outflows 37,437          31,890          41,289          

Total assets and deferred outflows 1,395,742     1,303,118     1,263,428     

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

Current liabilities 53,166          45,154          46,265          

Noncurrent liabilities 428,206        447,927        472,204        

Deferred inflows 80,742          146,017        182,188        

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 562,114        639,098        700,657        

Net Position

Net investment in capital 610,122        598,513        585,721        

Restricted 207,480        201,154        178,467        

Unrestricted 16,026          (135,647)       (201,417)       

     Total net position 833,628$      664,020$      562,771$      
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020:  Total assets and deferred outflow were $1.3 billion as of June 30, 2020. 
Of this amount, investment in capital assets (net of depreciation) of $754.6 million, or 57.9 percent of total 
assets and deferred outflows, represented the largest asset class.  Cash and cash equivalents totaled $342.2 
million or 26.3 percent of total assets and deferred outflows, and endowments were $67.3 million or 5.2 
percent of total assets and deferred outflows.  Total assets and deferred outflows increased by $39.7 million, 
primarily due to an increase in the other post-employment benefit (OPEB) asset of $28.5 million. 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows were $639.1 million as of June 30, 2020.  Net pension liability totaled 
$243.1 million or 38.0 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows.  Capital leases were $158.2 million or 
24.8 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows.  Liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by $61.6 million 
or 8.8 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows, primarily due to a decrease in pension deferred inflows 
of $46.5 million and a decrease in the liability for other post-employment benefits of $8.8 million.   

As of June 30, 2020, total net position of $664.0 million is recorded in three categories:  net investment in 
capital, $598.5 million (90.1 percent); restricted $201.2 million (30.3 percent); and unrestricted $(135.6 million) 
(-20.4 percent).  Total net position increased by $101.2 million primarily due to unrestricted revenue over 
expenses of $65.8 million and an increase in restricted expendable net assets of $21.6 million.  

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position includes all revenues, expenses, gains, and losses.  

Tuition and fees are presented net of bad debt expense, scholarship allowances, gift scholarships and 
institutional scholarships. Scholarship allowances are the difference between the stated charges for goods 
and services provided and the amount billed to students and third parties; excess aid disbursed is recognized 
as student financial aid expense. Institutional aid and grants-in-aid funded by federal and state grants are 
reported net of scholarship allowances.  

State appropriations, certain grants, gifts, investment income, and endowment income are reported as 
nonoperating revenues. KCTCS, generally, reports an operating loss prior to the addition of nonoperating 
revenues. The change in net assets is an indicator of whether the overall financial position has improved or 
declined. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021:  Total operating revenues were $229.8 million for the year ended June 30, 
2021, including net student tuition and fees of $106.6 million or 46.4 percent of total operating revenues, and 
grants and contracts of $105.5 million or 45.9 percent of total operating revenues.   

Operating expenses totaled $549.2 million.  Of this amount, $511.4 million or 93.1 percent of total operating 
expenses was spent on educational and general programs, including instruction, academic support, libraries, 
public service, student services, institutional support, student financial aid and operations and maintenance 
(excluding depreciation).  The loss from operations for the year was $319.4 million.  Nonoperating and other 
revenues totaled $488.9 million or 34.9 percent, including state appropriation of $170.5. Net position increased 
by $169.6 million.   

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020:  Total operating revenues were $210.4 million for the year ended June 30, 
2020, including net student tuition and fees of $103.4 million or 49.1 percent of total operating revenues, and 
grants and contracts of $97.7 million or 46.4 percent of total operating revenues. 

Operating expenses totaled $514.5 million.  Of this amount, $477.6 million, or 93.0 percent of total operating 
expenses, was spent on educational and general programs. The loss from operations was $304.1 million for 
the year ended June 30, 2020.  Nonoperating revenues totaled $405.3 million. Nonoperating revenues include 
state appropriations of $174.6 million or 43.1 percent of total nonoperating revenues. Net position increased 
by $101.2 million.   
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Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position are shown below as of June 30 
(in thousands): 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

2021 2020 2019

Operating revenues

Student tuition and fees, net 106,626$  103,354$  102,956$  

Grants and contracts 105,508        97,722 99,423 

Other operating revenues 17,701 9,325 9,688 

Total operating revenues 229,835        210,401        212,067        

Operating expenses

Educational and general, excluding depreciation 511,417        477,607        473,896        

Depreciation 37,807 36,873 36,227 

Total operating expenses 549,224        514,480        510,123        

Operating loss (319,389)       (304,079)       (298,056)       

Nonoperating revenues 

State appropriations 170,546        174,581        174,572        

Federal and state grants and contracts 284,246        203,369        185,296        

Other nonoperating revenues 10,464 12,928 19,327 

Total nonoperating revenues 465,256        390,878        379,195        

Income before other revenues, expenses

 gains or losses 145,867        86,799 81,139 

Capital construction appropriations 5,764 16,978 9,577 

Net realized gain (loss) on disposal of

  capital assets (2,241) (2,998) 1,198 

Additions to endowments 20,218 470 3,739 

Total other revenues 23,741 14,450 14,514 

Total increase in net position 169,608        101,249        95,653 

Net position, beginning of year 664,020        562,771        467,118        

Net position, end of year 833,628$  664,020$  562,771$  
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The following charts show operating revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.  State 
appropriations are nonoperating revenues, therefore, are not included in the chart below: 

Statement of Cash Flows:  The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash inflows and outflows summarized by 
operating, capital, financing, and investing activities.  This statement informs future net cash flow, ability to 
pay obligations and requirements for external financing.  

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021:  Major sources of cash received from operating activities include student 
tuition and fees ($112.3 million) and grants and contracts ($98.6 million).  Major uses of cash for operating 
activities include salaries and benefits ($327.3 million), vendor and contractor payments ($141.3 million) and 
student financial aid ($89.0 million). Noncapital financing activities include federal, state, and local grants, 
contracts, and appropriations of $284.2 million. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020:  Major sources of cash received from operating activities include student 
tuition and fees ($103.4 million) and grants and contracts ($98.7 million).  Major uses of cash for operating 
activities include salaries and benefits ($331.5 million), vendor and contractor payments ($133.3 million) and 
student financial aid ($83.2 million). Noncapital financing activities include federal, state, and local grants, 
contracts, and appropriations of $203.4 million. 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows are shown below for years ending June 30 (in thousands): 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 

. 

2021 2020 2019

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities (328,719)$  (336,021)$  (308,866)$  

State appropriation 170,546        174,581        174,572        

Other noncapital financing activities 295,720        212,238        198,783        

Capital and related financing activities (48,864)         (47,286)         (57,668)         

Investing activities (411) 8,511 1,479 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 88,272 12,023 8,300 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 342,234        330,211        321,911        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 430,506$  342,234$  330,211$  

Student tuition 
and fees, net

46%

Grants and 
contracts

46%

Other operating 
revenue

8%

OPERATING REVENUES

Instruction and 
support 

65%

Operations and 
maintenance

12%

Depreciation
7%

Financial aid
16%

OPERATING EXPENSES
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Capital Assets:  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $751.5 million at June 30, 2021, an 
increase of $8.9 million. Capital assets as of June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, and significant changes are 
shown below (in thousands): 

  
  

At June 30, 2021, KCTCS had capital construction projects in progress totaling $38.8 million.  These projects 
are principally financed by appropriations and bond proceeds from the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
 
Fiduciary Funds:  KCTCS adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, during the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2021 and retroactively to June 30, 2020.  This statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary 
activities and specifies reporting requirements. As a result of this statement, KCTCS identified one fiduciary 
fund – a postemployment benefit trust (KCTCS OPEB Trust).  The KCTCS OPEB Trust provides health 
insurance coverage to retirees, retiree eligible spouses and/or dependents. KCTCS’ fiduciary responsibilities 
include ensuring assets in the trust are secure and outflows occur in accordance with the trust agreement. 
GASB 84 requires KCTCS to report a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in 
Fiduciary Net Position. In addition, Notes to the financial statements report additional information related to 
the KCTCS OPEB Trust. 
 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:  The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position presents assets, liabilities, 
and net fiduciary position as of the end of each fiscal year.   
 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position:  The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
presents additions received and deductions incurred during the year. Additions include investment income, 
realized and unrealized gains/losses and interest/dividends. Additions are reduced by investment 
management fees. Deductions include health insurance payments for retirees and spouses and administrative 
expenses. 
 
Financial Highlights:  The KCTCS OPEB Trust includes cash and investments totaling $246.7 million and 
$203.2 million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. Net position totaled $246.8 million and $203.2 million as of June 
30, 2021 and 2020.  Total additions were $48.4 million and $2.3 million for the fiscal years ending June 30, 
2021 and 2020.  Total deductions were $4.8 million and $4.1 million for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 
and 2020. Net position increased by $43.5 million, or 21.4 percent, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2021 primarily due to realized and unrealized gains on investments. 
  

  

Balance Net Balance Net Balance

June 30, Additions June 30, Additions June 30,

2019 FY 2020 2020 FY 2021 2021

Land and land improvements 55,304$     3,747$      59,051$     619$         59,670$     

Buildings and infrastructure 960,505     43,091      1,003,596  31,025      1,034,621  

Equipment 148,054     10,644      158,698     8,664        167,362     

Library materials 42,792      591           43,383      609           43,992      

Construction in progress 68,997      (14,381)     54,616      (15,824)     38,792      

Total assets 1,275,652  43,692      1,319,344  25,093      1,344,437  

Accumulated depreciation (533,066)    (31,727)     (564,793)    (28,186)     (592,979)    

   Capital assets, net 742,586$   11,965$     754,551$   (3,093)$     751,458$   
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Economic Factors Impacting Future Periods 

The following are existing conditions and circumstances that will affect future financial results: 

• After a national search, the Kentucky Community and Technical College System (KCTCS) Board of
Regents selected Dr. Paul Czarapata as the new president of KCTCS on April 21, 2021.  Dr. Czarapata
had served as KCTCS’ interim president since October 1, 2020 and, prior to that, was KCTCS’ Vice-
President of Technology Solutions and Chief Information Officer.  He joined KCTCS in 2000 and served in
technology leadership roles leading up to his appointment as Vice-President.

• For FY 2022, KCTCS earned $3.8 million or 22 percent of the Performance-Based Funding Pool in state
appropriation support.  KCTCS’ performance-based funding allocation is distributed based on each
college’s performance as calculated per KCTCS’ Performance-Based Funding Model metrics.  Not included
in performance-based funding calculations is $9.7 million in dedicated funding for mandated programs (i.e.
Kentucky Fire Commission and State Fire Rescue Training, Kentucky Board of Emergency Medical
Services, KCTCS Adult Agriculture Education Program, KCTCS-TRAINS, and Kentucky Public Pension
Authority (KPPA) Employer Assistance) which is part of KCTCS’ base state appropriation.  For FY 2022,
the base state appropriation for KCTCS is $175.4 million.

• For FY 2022, the Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education approved a tuition and fee maximum base
rate increase for KCTCS of no more than $5 per credit hour over two years (i.e., a 2.79% total increase
over two years) and a maximum base rate increase of no more than $3 per credit hour in any one year (i.e.,
a 1.68% increase in any one year).  On June 11, 2021, the KCTCS Board of Regents approved the FY
2022 resident tuition rate of $179 per student credit hour – a zero percent increase over FY 2021.
Nonresident students from counties contiguous to Kentucky will pay $358 per credit hour. Other nonresident
students will pay $627 per credit hour and students taking online courses will continue to pay $179 per
credit hour for FY 2022.

• The KCTCS Board of Regents approved the FY 2022 Operating Budget of $1.067 billion and the FY 2022
Capital Budget of $49.3 million. The FY 2022 Operating Budget continues KCTCS' practice of budgeting
an unrestricted non-recurring emergency budget reserve, of which $13.6 million is budgeted for FY 2022.
Each college, the Kentucky Fire Commission, the Kentucky Board of Emergency Medical Services and
Systemwide Operations and Support Programs have set aside these funds as a contingency for a possible
state appropriation budget reduction, decline in enrollment, or other unanticipated, unavoidable costs.

• In December 2012, the KCTCS Board of Regents approved the establishment of a KCTCS OPEB Trust.
In March 2013, KCTCS funded the Trust to substantially offset the actuarially calculated liability. Reflective
of current financial markets and employees leaving KCTCS prior to retirement for other employment, as of
June 30, 2021, the Trust's assets of $246.7 million exceeded the total OPEB expected pension benefit
obligation liability of $189.7 million by $57.0 million or 23.1 percent. This valuation is reflective of KCTCS
acting as of January 2020 to reduce the out-of-pocket cost for retiree single coverage healthcare insurance
to one-half for covered retirees. Based on the future expected obligation costs per the 2021 actuarial
analysis, KCTCS is considering moving in January 2022 to a Medicare Advantage supplemental healthcare
policy for KCTCS 403(b) retirees that would cover the full out-of-pocket cost for retiree single coverage
healthcare insurance as well as the reduce and/or eliminate the deductible for prescriptions, and provide
enhanced dental, vision, and hearing coverage.

• KCTCS has employees in the Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) and Kentucky Employees
Retirement System (KERS).  As of June 30, 2021, KCTCS had 371 employees in KERS and 362 in KTRS.
With the passage of House Bill 192 of the 2021 Kentucky General Assembly, KCTCS and the other four-
year public postsecondary education institutions participating in KERS retained the employer contribution
rate of 49.47% versus 84.43%, through June 30, 2022. The 2021-22 enacted state budget appropriated
$854,900 in state general funds for KCTCS to help offset the increased costs of employer contributions to
the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) – calculated as KCTCS' accrued liability per House
Bill 8.
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 KCTCS recognizes that additional revenue streams are needed to offset limited state funding, potential 
enrollment declines, and tuition revenue shortfalls. In acknowledgment of that fact, in spring 2021, KCTCS, 
through an external 3rd party vendor, conducted a system-wide affinity partnership climate assessment. 
From that assessment it was determined that KCTCS has the potential for several system-wide, regional, 
and college affinity partnership opportunities.  It is anticipated that in FY 2022 a number of these potential 
partnerships will be pursued in hopes of establishing new long-term revenue streams. 

 
 The COVID-19 pandemic disrupted normal operations during most of fiscal years 2020 and 2021.  With the 

three FDA-approved COVID-19 vaccines available on June 11, 2021, the governor’s office rescinded many 
of the public health measures which had been enacted to prevent the spread of COVID-19.  The pandemic 
had an abrupt and major impact on both the education and the labor market.  The severity of the pandemic 
continues to impact individuals as it relates to their educational attainment.  KCTCS is primed to provide 
affordable and equitable access to education to the Commonwealth in the wake of the pandemic.  KCTCS 
continues to provide students with the most affordable access to postsecondary education and workforce 
training in high-wage and high-demand educational programs.   

 
 KCTCS colleges were awarded federal stimulus relief to help assist with the increased costs, disruption of 

operations, and lost revenue caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.  KCTCS colleges were awarded 
approximately $49.0 million in Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act funds prior to 
June 30, 2020. On December 27, 2020, KCTCS colleges were awarded $94.9 million from the Coronavirus 
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2021 (CRRSAA).  On March 11, 2021, the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) awarded KCTCS colleges $155.5 million in federal stimulus relief. In 
total, KCTCS has been awarded more than $299.4 million in federal stimulus relief funds. 
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Our Mission 

In everything we do, our mission is to improve the quality of life and employability of the citizens of the 
Commonwealth by serving as the primary provider of: 

• College and workforce readiness

• Transfer education

• Workforce education and training

Vision 

A world-class system of colleges educating Kentucky's globally competitive workforce. 

Values 

• Flexibility and innovation

• Quality and excellence

• Openness and accountability

• Continuous improvement

• Data and outcomes-driven decision making

• Inclusion, equity, respect, and global diversity

• Balance, collaboration, and teamwork

In summary, although KCTCS has and continues to face many economic challenges, KCTCS management 
believes that its past and current management practices have and continue to position KCTCS for long-term 
financial health. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(in thousands) 

ASSETS

Current Assets

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Loans, accounts, and pledges receivable, net of bad debt

 Other current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents

 Loans and other receivables

 Endowment investments

 Other long-term investments

 Net other postemployment benefit asset

 Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Deferred Outflows

 Deferred outflows - pension

 Deferred outflows - other postemployment benefits

Total deferred outflows

Total assets and deferred outflows

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

 Accounts payable and accrued expenses

 Employee withholdings and deposits

 Compensated absences - current

 Unearned revenue

 Leases payable - current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

 Leases payable - noncurrent

 Compensated absences - noncurrent

 Net pension liability

 Net other postemployment benefit liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Deferred Inflows

 Deferred inflows - pension

 Deferred inflows - other postemployment benefits

Total deferred inflows

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

NET POSITION

    Net investment in capital

Restricted

 Nonexpendable

    Expendable

Unrestricted

Total net position

2021 2020

$ 351,061 $ 265,978

33,174 33,095

2,741 2,282

386,976 301,355

79,445 76,256

1,272 1,885

86,850 67,299

19,829 17,357

32,475 52,525

751,458 754,551

971,329 969,873

16,374 24,324

21,063 7,566

37,437 31,890

1,395,742 1,303,118

30,031 21,319

3,218 3,020

910 970

9,931 10,640

9,076 9,205

53,166 45,154

133,112 148,985

8,188 8,734

239,270 243,073

47,636 47,135

428,206 447,927

42,605 90,238

38,137 55,779

80,742 146,017

562,114 639,098

610,122 598,513

48,029 46,270

159,451 154,884

16,026 (135,647)

$ 833,628 $ 664,020



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
(in thousands) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPERATING REVENUES

     Student tuition and fees, net of bad debt

     Less: Scholarship allowances

          Net tuition and fees

     Federal grants and contracts

     State and local grants and contracts

     Nongovernmental grants and contracts

     Indirect cost recoveries

     Sales and services

     Other operating revenues

          Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Educational and General:

     Instruction

     Public service

     Libraries

     Academic support

     Student services

     Institutional support

     Operation and maintenance of physical plant

     Depreciation

     Student financial aid

          Total operating expenses

              Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     State appropriations

     Federal and state grants and contracts

     Gifts

     Investment income

     Interest expense - capital leases

     Other nonoperating revenues

          Net nonoperating revenues

              Income before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses

     Capital construction appropriations

     Net realized loss on disposal of capital assets

     Additions to endowments

          Total other revenues

              Increase in net position

NET POSITION

     Net position - beginning of year

     Net position - end of year

664,020 562,771

$ 833,628 $ 664,020

169,608 101,249

(2,241) (2,998)

20,218 470

23,741 14,450

465,256 390,878

145,867 86,799

5,764 16,978

1,394 8,724

(4,305) (4,651)

9,216 4,750

170,546 174,581

284,246 203,369

4,159 4,105

(319,389) (304,079)

37,807 36,873

89,009 83,222

549,224 514,480

51,499 52,943

65,036 58,071

64,932 66,683

40,234 40,158

6,308 6,864

26,111 23,403

168,288 146,263

3,789 2,237

229,835 210,401

46 154

10,004 2,326

3,908 4,762

106,626 103,354

44,813 45,870

60,649 51,698

$ 247,390 $ 256,933

(140,764) (153,579)

2021 2020



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
(in thousands) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

Cash flows from operating activities:

Tuition and fees $ 112,260 $ 103,447

Grants and contracts 98,590 98,730

Indirect cost recoveries 10,004 2,326

Sales and services 3,908 4,762

Payments to vendors and contractors (141,346) (133,346)

Student financial aid (88,963) (83,151)

Salaries, wages and benefits (327,337) (331,549)

Other receipts 4,165 2,760

Net cash used in operating activities (328,719) (336,021)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

State appropriations 170,546 174,581

Federal, state and local grants, contracts and appropriations 284,246 203,369

Gifts and pledges received for non-capital purposes 2,258 4,119

Other nonoperating receipts 9,216 4,750

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 466,266 386,819

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Capital appropriations 5,764 16,978

Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 1,393 1,946

Purchase of capital assets (35,714) (53,476)

Principal paid on leases (16,925) (10,722)

Proceeds from leases 923 2,639

Interest paid on leases (4,305) (4,651)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (48,864) (47,286)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 33 14

Interest on investments (175) 8,500

Purchase of investments (269) (3)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (411) 8,511

Net change in cash 88,272 12,023

Cash - beginning of year 342,234 330,211

Cash - end of year $ 430,506 $ 342,234

2021 2020



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
(in thousands) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Reconciliation of net operating loss to net cash used in 

operating activities:

Operating loss $ (319,389) $ (304,079)

Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash

used in operating activities:

Depreciation expense 37,807 36,873

Increase (decrease) in cash due to change in:

Loans and accounts receivable, net (199) 2,921

Other assets (459) 884

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,712 479

Employee withholdings and deposits 198 (615)

Compensated absences (606) 452

Unearned revenue (709) (1,296)

Deferred outflows - pension 7,950 10,102

Deferred outflows - OPEB (13,497) (703)

Deferred inflows - pension (47,633) (46,499)

Deferred inflows - OPEB (17,642) 10,328

Net pension liability (3,803) (7,507)

Net OPEB liability 20,551 (37,361)

Net cash used in operating activities $ (328,719) $ (336,021)

Non-cash capital activities:

Donated capital assets $ 2,634 $ 306

Capital assets included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 413 $ 2,229

2021 2020



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position 
Other Postemployment Benefit Trust 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 
(in thousands) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020

ASSETS

     Cash and cash equivalents $ 614 $ 2,175

     Prepaid benefit payments 25 22

     Investments:

       Public equities 143,813 113,342

       Public equities - natural resources 9,454 7,916

       Core bonds 24,256 19,490

       High quality bond funds 57,511 49,611

       Core real estate 11,091 10,689

          Total investments 246,125 201,048

              Total assets 246,764 203,245

LIABILITIES

       Accounts payable 12 15

              Total liabilities 12 15

NET POSITION

     Restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions $ 246,752 $ 203,230



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Other Postemployment Benefit Trust 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(in thousands) 
 

2021 2020

ADDITIONS

     Investment income:

       Net increase in fair value of investments $ 48,527 $ 2,440

       Interest and dividends                      - 4

       Less investment expenses (156) (141)

         Net investment income 48,371 2,303

          Total additions 48,371 2,303

DEDUCTIONS

     Benefit payments 4,786 3,979

     Administrative expense 63 99

          Total deductions 4,849 4,078

              Net increase (decrease) in net position 43,522 (1,775)

NET POSITION

     Beginning of year 203,230 205,005

     End of year $ 246,752 $ 203,230
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 
 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity - The Kentucky Community and Technical College System (KCTCS) is a component unit of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky (Commonwealth) and its financial reports are included in the Commonwealth’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). KCTCS has evaluated the existence of component units (e.g., system 
and college foundations) and determined that there are none that meet the component unit criteria.   

  

Basis of Accounting and Presentation - KCTCS prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB).  The financial statements provide a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of financial position, 
changes in net position, and cash flows.  Business-type activity is presented in proprietary financial statements and 
fiduciary activity is presented in fiduciary financial statements. Business-type activities are those that are financed by 
fees charged to external parties for goods or services. Fiduciary activities are those that are held and administered in a 
fiduciary capacity. Proprietary financial statements are included in the Commonwealth’s CAFR as a business-type 
activity and fiduciary statements are included as a fiduciary fund.     
 
The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting – revenues and additions are recognized 
when earned and expenses and deductions are recognized when incurred. For proprietary financial statements, 
exchange transactions are recognized when the exchange transaction takes place and non-exchange transactions are 
recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met. 

  

Cash and Cash Equivalents - KCTCS considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents.  Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents are restricted for capital 
construction, grants, loans, and endowment fund cash pending transfer to the custodian for investment by the 
endowment fund managers.   

  

Proprietary cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits in local banks of $105.0 million, with the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky of $325.5 million and with the Commonfund of $2.7 million as of June 30, 2021 and, as of June 30, 2020, 
deposits in local banks of $65.3 million, with the Commonwealth of Kentucky of $276.9 million, and with the 
Commonfund of $3.0 million.  Deposits with local banks and investments in repurchase agreements are covered by 
federal depository insurance or collateralized by securities held in KCTCS' name by its agents.  Deposits with the 
Commonwealth are covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized by securities held by the Commonwealth 
in its name. 
 
Fiduciary cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with the Commonfund of $0.6 million and $2.1 million as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

  

Pooled Endowment Funds - KCTCS employs the total return concept of investment management for setting 
investment objectives and determining investment performance.  This concept recognizes dividends, interest, and 
realized and unrealized gains or losses in determining the total return earned during any particular period.  The market 
value method of accounting for pooled endowment funds is employed to ensure proper distribution of market price 
changes, realized gains and losses on sales, accrued income earned, and distribution of investment earnings for 
expenditure by participating funds. 

  

The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, as adopted by the Commonwealth of Kentucky, permits 
KCTCS to appropriate an amount of the realized and unrealized endowment appreciation to support current programs.  
Accordingly, spendable return of the endowment is determined using the total return philosophy.  The philosophy 
recognizes a prudent amount of the increase in the fair value of investments (realized and unrealized) as spendable 
return in addition to interest and dividends earned.  Distribution of investment earnings for expenditure by participating 
funds is supported first by interest and dividends and, if necessary and available, a transfer from the endowment of any 
accumulated realized and unrealized gains on investments.  If a donor has not provided specific instructions, state law 
permits KCTCS to authorize for expenditure the new appreciation (realized and unrealized) of the investments of 
endowment funds.  When administering its power to spend net appreciation, KCTCS is required to consider the long 
and short-term needs present and anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its investments, price-
level trends, and general economic conditions.  
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Pooled Endowment Funds (continued) - The amount of earnings to be distributed is determined annually based on 
these factors.  Any net appreciation that is spent is required to be spent for the purposes for which the endowment was 
established. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, net appreciation of $30.6 million and $12.8 million was available to spend, of 
which $30.0 million and $12.4 million was restricted for specific purposes.   

Investments - Investments are stated at fair value and money markets are measured at amortized cost. Unrealized 
gains and losses on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for proprietary activity and in the Statements of 
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for fiduciary activity.  

Loans, Accounts and Pledges Receivable - Accounts receivable consist of student tuition and fees and amounts due 
from federal, state, and local governments or private sources in connection with grants and contracts.  Accounts 
receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts.  KCTCS determines its allowance by considering a 
number of factors, including the length of time accounts receivable are past due, previous loss history and the condition 
of the general economy.  KCTCS writes off accounts when they are assessed as uncollectible.  KCTCS has recorded 
an allowance for uncollectible student accounts of $2,574 and $5,735 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. KCTCS 
considers all other accounts receivable related to grants and contracts to be fully collectible.  Pledges receivable are 
unconditional commitments from donors to give stated amounts over a specific period of time in the future.  KCTCS 
records pledges at the present value of the net realizable amount. Loans receivable primarily consist of loans made by 
the Fire Commission.  The Fire Commission is authorized to make low interest loans for the purchase of major 
equipment and construction of facilities to properly train volunteer fire departments that do not have other sources of 
funds at rates, which are favorable given their financial resources.  KCTCS currently considers loans receivable and 
pledges to be fully collectible.  Accordingly, no allowance for uncollectible accounts is recorded at June 30, 2021 and 
2020. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at acquisition value 
at the date of the gift.  Interest incurred on construction in progress is capitalized.  For years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, total interest capitalized was $492,217 and $341,912. 

Equipment with a unit cost of $5,000 or more and having an estimated useful life of greater than one year is capitalized.  
Renovations to buildings, infrastructure and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful 
life of the structure are capitalized.  Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the period in 
which the expense is incurred. 

Depreciation of capital assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 
40 years for buildings and land improvements, 25 years for infrastructure, 10 years for library volumes and 3 to 10 years 
for equipment.  Assets under vendor financing agreements are amortized on the straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful life of the asset, or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter. 

Compensated Absences - The liability for employee vacation and sick leave is recorded as compensated absences in 
the Statements of Net Position and the expense is recorded as a component of operating expense in the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue consists primarily of unearned tuition and fees related to the summer session 
and amounts from grants and contracts that have not yet been earned under the terms of the agreements. 

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Kentucky Employees Retirement 
System (KERS) and Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) and additions to/deductions from KERS' and KTRS' 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by KERS and KTRS.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 
 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) - The KERS and KTRS defined benefit OPEB plans provide 
other postemployment benefits to eligible retirees participating in the KERS and KTRS pension plans.  For purposes of 
measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and OPEB expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of KERS and KTRS and additions to/deductions from KERS’ and KTRS’ 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by KERS and KTRS.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.  The KCTCS defined benefit OPEB plan 
provides other postemployment benefits to eligible retirees participating in the 403(b) defined contribution plan.  The 
KCTCS OPEB plan is funded through an irrevocable trust under IRC Section 115, which was established during the 
year ended June 30, 2013.  The KCTCS OPEB plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.   

 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB asset or liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources 
and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the KCTCS OPEB and additions to/deductions from 
the KCTCS’ OPEB fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as described, above. 

  

Net Position - Net position for proprietary (business-type) activities is classified as follows:  
 
  Net investment in capital:  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and unspent principal balances of 

debt, attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
  Restricted, Nonexpendable:  Net assets of $48.0 million is subject to externally imposed stipulations and 

related endowment fund investments are maintained permanently by KCTCS.   
 
Restricted, Expendable:  Net assets of $159.5 million whose use by KCTCS is subject to externally imposed 
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of KCTCS pursuant to those stipulations or that expire over time.   

 
  Unrestricted:  Net assets whose use by KCTCS is not subject to externally imposed stipulations.  Unrestricted 

net assets may be designated for specific purposes by KCTCS management or the Board of Regents or may be 
limited by contractual agreements with external parties. 
 

Net position for fiduciary activities is comprised of a postemployment benefit trust the (KCTCS OPEB Trust) and includes 
one category of net position which is restricted and expendable.  
 

Restricted, Expendable:  Net assets of $246.8 million whose use by KCTCS is subject to stipulations as dictated 
by the irrevocable trust which exists to provide health insurance coverage for participating retirees and their 
spouses.   

 
Student Tuition and Fees - Student tuition and fees are presented net of bad debt, scholarships and other financial 
aid applied to student accounts.  Payments made directly to students are presented as student financial aid expenses. 
 
Scholarship Allowances - Scholarship allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services 
provided and the amount paid by students or third parties on behalf of students.  Student tuition and fee revenues are 
reported net of scholarship allowances in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  To the 
extent that revenues from grants or other programs are used to satisfy tuition, fees, and other student charges, they are 
recorded as scholarship allowances. 
 
Federal and State Grants and Contracts - Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (SEOG), 
College Access Program (CAP) Grants and Kentucky Educational Excellence Scholarships (KEES) are considered 
nonexchange transactions and are recorded as nonoperating revenues.  KCTCS also received Coronavirus Aid, Relief 
and Economic Security (CARES) Act funds to help offset the costs of the COVID-19 pandemic. For the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS recognized $20.9 million and $16.3 million of CARES revenue. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 
 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Federal and State Grants and Contracts (continued) – In addition, in 2021, KCTCS received Coronavirus Response 
and Supplemental Appropriations (CRRSA) Act funds and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act funds to help offset the 
costs of the COVID-19 pandemic. KCTCS recognized $72.3 million of CRRSA revenue and $16.0 million of ARP 
revenue for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Operating Activities - KCTCS defines operating activities, as reported in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position, as those that result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for providing 
goods and services and payments made for goods and services received.  Nearly all of KCTCS' expenses are from 
exchange transactions.  Certain significant revenues relied on for operations, such as state appropriations, certain 
grants, gifts, and investment income, are recorded as nonoperating revenues. 

 
Income Taxes - KCTCS is an agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, pursuant to Kentucky 
Revised Statutes sections 164.580 thru 164.600.  Accordingly, KCTCS is generally exempt from federal income taxes 
as an organization described in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 
 
Restricted Asset Spending Policy - KCTCS' policy is that restrictions on assets cannot be fulfilled by the expenditure 
of unrestricted funds.  The determination of whether restricted or unrestricted funds are expended for a particular 
purpose is made on a case-by-case basis.  Restricted funds remain restricted until spent for the intended purpose. 
 
Use of Estimates - Financial statements prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require estimates and assumptions.  The accompanying financial statements include estimates 
for items such as bad debt allowances, fair value of investments, useful lives of capital assets, accrued expenses, net 
pension liability, net other postemployment benefit liability and other liabilities.  Actual results could differ from estimates. 
 
Accounting Pronouncements Adopted - Accounting statements adopted by KCTCS during the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2021, as required by the GASB, are described, below: 
 

Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities.  This statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activity and requires 
related financial statements and note disclosures. As a result of adopting this standard, KCTCS presents 
comparative Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for its single-
employer, defined benefit other postemployment benefit trust fund (KCTCS OPEB Trust). KCTCS adopted this 
standard as of June 30, 2021 and retroactively to June 30, 2020. There was no financial impact on KCTCS’ 
business-type activities as a result of adopting this statement.  
 
Statement 90, Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61.  This statement 
requires majority equity interests in legally separate organizations, which meet the definition of an investment, to be 
measured at fair value using the equity method of accounting. KCTCS has determined that it does not have any 
such investments. 
 
Statement 92, Omnibus 2020.  This statement addresses the application of various previously issued statements and 
implementation guides.  It is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Certain provisions are effective 
immediately and KCTCS has implemented those provisions with no material impact to its financial statements. 
KCTCS will implement the remainder of the provisions during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
 
Statement 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.  This statement addresses accounting and financial 
reporting implications that result from the replacement of an interbank offered rate, such as the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (LIBOR).  As a result of global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current 
form at the end of 2021, prompting governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of 
replacing LIBOR with other reference rates. KCTCS has implemented this standard with no material impact to its 
financial statements.   
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Accounting Pronouncements Adopted (continued) –  
 

Statement 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC) Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a 
supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.  This statement requires that Section 457 plans be classified as pension 
or other employee benefit plans and clarifies that the provisions of GASB Statement 84 should be applied to IRC 
Section 457 plans to determine whether those arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities.  This 
statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  KCTCS will implement this statement during its 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 

 
Implementation Guide – 2019–1, Implementation Guidance Update – 2019.  This guide addresses the application 
of various previously issued statements and implementation guides.  KCTCS has implemented the provisions of 
this implementation guide with no material impact to its financial statements.   
  
Implementation Guide – 2019–2, Fiduciary Activities.  This guide provides clarification of certain requirements 
included in GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. KCTCS has implemented the requirements of this guidance 
as part of adoption of GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. 

 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements – As of June 30, 2021, the GASB has issued the following statements which 
KCTCS has not yet implemented:  

 
Statement 87, Leases.  This statement revises the recognition criteria for leases and, generally, requires recognition 
of lease assets and liabilities for most leases that were previously classified as operating leases.  It is effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  KCTCS will implement this statement during its fiscal year ending June 30, 
2022. 
 
Statement 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period.  This statement 
requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the 
period in which the cost is incurred.  Interest incurred after implementation of this standard will no longer be 
capitalized as part of the cost of the related asset.  This statement is effective for periods beginning after December 
15, 2020.  KCTCS will implement this statement during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 

 
Statement 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  This statement requires a single method of reporting conduit debt 
obligations by issuers.  It is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2021.  KCTCS will implement this 
statement during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 
 
Statement 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements.  This 
statement specifies accounting and reporting requirements, including revenue recognition, related to public-private 
and public-public partnerships, including service concession arrangements.  It is effective for periods beginning after 
June 15, 2022.  KCTCS will implement this statement during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 
 
Statement 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.  This statement requires the recognition 
of an intangible asset and corresponding liability, as well as note disclosures for arrangements that meet the 
definition of a subscription-based information technology arrangement (SBITA).  It also requires capitalization for 
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA.  This statement is effective 
for periods beginning after June 15, 2022.  KCTCS will implement this statement during its fiscal year ending June 
30, 2023. 
 
Implementation Guide – 2019–3, Leases.  This guide provides clarification of certain requirements included in GASB 
Statement 87, Leases.  It is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  KCTCS will implement the 
requirements of this guide for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued) –  
 
Implementation Guide – 2020–1, Implementation Guidance Update - 2020.  This guide addresses the application 
of various previously issued statements and implementation guides.  It is effective for periods beginning after June 
15, 2021 and December 15, 2021.  KCTCS will implement the provisions in this guide for its fiscal years ending 
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2023, as applicable. 

 
KCTCS’ management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on KCTCS’ financial statements. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic (COVID-19) - The COVID-19 pandemic disrupted normal operations and created the need to 
move all spring semester classes online in March 2020. In May 2020, the governor’s office and the Kentucky Council 
on Postsecondary Education granted permission for the colleges to allow students in technical programs back on 
campus for a limited amount of time to complete their programs. Summer 2020 classes were all online, however, 
beginning in the Fall of 2020, classes were a mix of online, face-to-face and hybrid. Although colleges are following 
safety protocols provided by the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the state, enrollment is down as 
might be expected.  Associated with addressing the needs to keep students, faculty, staff, and campus visitors healthy 
and safe from the COVID-19 pandemic, all colleges had significant changes in operational protocols. To help offset 
these costs KCTCS Colleges received funds from the following federal and state sources: Coronavirus Aid, Relief and 
Economic Security (CARES) Act, Coronavirus Response and Supplemental Appropriations (CRRSA) Act, American 
Rescue Plan (ARP) Act, Governors Emergency Education Relief (GEER) and Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF).  In total, 
all sources (federal and federal flow through), KCTCS Colleges were awarded approximately $247.2 million and $40.2 
million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.  Approximately $143.5 million and $23.6 million remained available as of June 
30, 2021 and 2020. 

 
Subsequent Events - Management has evaluated subsequent events for accounting and disclosure requirements 
through October 7, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.     
 
2. Loans, Accounts and Pledges Receivable 
 
Loans, accounts, and pledges receivable (net of allowances) as of June 30 are as follows (in thousands): 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020

Student (net of allowances of $2,574 and $5,735) 11,112$     12,861$     

Other receivables 1,034        5,554        

Reimbursement receivable – grants and contracts 20,426      13,582      

Pledges receivable 571           1,304        

Accrued interest receivable 21             27             

Bridge loans 63             102           

Loans receivable from fire districts 1,219        1,550        

     Total 34,446      34,980      

Current portion 33,174      33,095      

Non-current portion 1,272$      1,885$      
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2. Loans, Accounts and Pledges Receivable  
 
Pledges receivable of $0.6 million as of June 30, 2021 are expected to be collected as follows (in thousands): 

 

 
 

KCTCS is required to record operating, endowment, and capital pledges as revenue when all eligibility requirements 
have been met. 
 
Fire commission loans receivables of $1.2 million as of June 30, 2021 are expected to be collected primarily over the 
next ten years as follows (in thousands): 

 

 
 
3. Investments 
 
Investments are stated at fair value.  Investments acquired by gift are stated at fair value at the date of the gift if a fair 
value is available, and otherwise, at appraised or nominal value.  KCTCS has the following investments as of June 30 
(in thousands): 

  

Investment Type 2021 2020 2021 2020

Bond funds 29,387$     25,692$     81,767$     69,101$     

Equity funds 63,022      49,314      153,267     121,258     

Other 14,270      9,650        11,091      10,689      

106,679$   84,656$     246,125$   201,048$   

Proprietary Fiduciary

 
 

Investment types described as "Other", above, include real estate holdings and limited partnerships.  Bond funds, equity 
funds and other funds are invested in fund of funds and are measured at net asset value. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2022 273$         

2023 83             

2024 69             

2025 36             

2026 26             

2027-2031 130           

617           

Present value discount (46)            

571$         

2022 307$         

2023 249           

2024 203           

2025 160           

2026 110           

2027 - 2031 190           

1,219$      
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3. Investments 
 
KCTCS maintains an investment management agreement with the Commonfund.  The Commonfund was founded in 
1969 to serve higher-education and non-profit organizations.  It currently serves more than 1,350 organizations and has 
over $25 billion in assets under management.  The Commonfund is unrated. 
 
At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Commonfund managed $109.4 million and $87.7 million of KCTCS' proprietary 
investments including money market funds of $2.7 million and $3.0 million which are classified as cash and cash 
equivalents on the Statements of Net Position.  At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Commonfund managed $246.6 million 
and $203.1 million of KCTCS' fiduciary investments including money market funds of $0.6 million and $2.0 million which 
are classified as cash and cash equivalents on the Statements of Fiduciary Net Position. 

  

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's 
investment in a single issuer.  KCTCS does not have a formal policy for concentration of credit risk. 

 
Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  KCTCS' investment policy does not specifically limit investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, KCTCS will not 
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  
KCTCS does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.  As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, all KCTCS U.S. Treasuries, 
U.S. Agencies, and Corporate Notes were held by the investment's counterparty. 
 
4. Fair Value Measurements 
 
KCTCS categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure the fair value.  Level 1 inputs are 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs 
are significant unobservable inputs.   
 
Investments measured at fair value using the net asset value (NAV) per share, or its equivalent as a practical expedient, 
are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.  In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different 
levels in the fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the valuation.  KCTCS' assessment of the significance of inputs to these fair value 
measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.   
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4. Fair Value Measurements 
 
Proprietary investments (in thousands) measured at net asset value (NAV) as of: 
  

Fair Value 

(NAV)

Unfunded 

Commitment Redemption Terms

June 30, 2021

Public equities 59,527$    -$                  Monthly, 5 days notice.  Partial not permitted if total investor value 

would be less than $500,000.

Public equities - natural resources 3,495        -                    Daily.

Fixed income equities 5,426        -                    Weekly, 5 days notice. Partial not permitted if total investor value 

would be less than $250,000.

High quality bonds 21,773      -                    Weekly, monthly and quarterly with 5 - 60 days notice.

Alternative investments 2,187        -                    Monthly and quarterly with 5 - 90 days notice.

Core real estate 3,505        800                Quarterly with 45 - 90 days notice.

Limited partnerships - natural resources 728           951                Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - real estate 1,453        2,233             Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - other 8,585        5,915             Upon termination of partnership.

106,679$   9,899$           

June 30, 2020

Public equities 46,562$    -$                  Monthly, 5 days notice.  Partial not permitted if total investor value 

would be less than $500,000.

Public equities - natural resources 2,752        -                    Daily.

Fixed income equities 5,015        -                    Weekly, 5 days notice. Partial not permitted if total investor value 

would be less than $250,000.

High quality bonds 18,455      -                    Weekly, monthly and quarterly with 5 - 60 days notice.

Alternative investments 2,222        -                    Monthly and quarterly with 5 - 90 days notice.

Core real estate 3,377        800                Quarterly with 45 - 90 days notice.

Limited partnerships - natural resources 503           1,126             Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - real estate 927           2,032             Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - other 4,843        5,617             Upon termination of partnership.

84,656$    9,575$           

Investment Objectives

Public equities

Public equities - natural resources

Fixed income equities

High quality bonds

Alternative investments

Core real estate

Limited partnerships - natural resources / other

Limited partnerships - real estate Obtain income and capital appreciation. 

Long-term capital growth.

Outperform Morgan Stanley Capital Int'l All Country World Index or Standard & Poors (S&P) 500.

Approximate performance of  S&P Global Large Midcap Commodity and Resources Index.

Perform at or better than Bank of America’s Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury Index.

Outperform Barclays Aggregate Bond Index.

Outperform 3-month Treasury Bills by more than 400 basis points, annually.

Provide returns in excess of National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries Fund Index.
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Fiduciary investments (in thousands) measured at net asset value (NAV) as of:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fair Value 

(NAV)

Unfunded 

Commitment Redemption Terms

June 30, 2021

Public equities 143,813$   -$                  Monthly, 5 days notice.  Partial not permitted if total investor value 

would be less than $500,000.

Public equities - natural resources 9,454        -                    Daily.

Core bonds 57,511      -                    Weekly, monthly and quarterly with 5 - 60 days notice.

Alternative investments 24,256      -                    Monthly and quarterly with 5 - 90 days notice.

Core real estate 11,091      -                    Quarterly with 45 - 90 days notice.

246,125$   -$                  

June 30, 2020

Public equities 113,342$   -$                  Monthly, 5 days notice.  Partial not permitted if total investor value 

would be less than $500,000.

Public equities - natural resources 7,916        -                    Daily.

Core bonds 49,611      -                    Weekly, monthly and quarterly with 5 - 60 days notice.

Alternative investments 19,490      -                    Monthly and quarterly with 5 - 90 days notice.

Core real estate 10,689      -                    Quarterly with 45 - 90 days notice.

201,048$   -$                  

Investment Objectives

Public equities

Public equities - natural resources

High quality bonds

Alternative investments

Core real estate

Outperform Morgan Stanley Capital Int'l All Country World Index or Standard & Poors (S&P) 500.

Approximate performance of  S&P Global Large Midcap Commodity and Resources Index.

Outperform Barclays Aggregate Bond Index.

Outperform 3-month Treasury Bills by more than 400 basis points, annually.

Provide returns in excess of National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries Fund Index.
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5. Capital Assets, Net 
 
Capital assets as of June 30 and the changes, therein, are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Beginning Transfers/ Ending

Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Cost

Land* 31,473$     320$         -$             31,793$     

Land improvements 27,578      299           -               27,877      

Buildings and infrastructure 1,003,596  39,821      8,796        1,034,621  

Construction in progress* 54,616      30,736      46,560      38,792      

Equipment 158,698     13,123      4,459        167,362     

Library materials 43,383      609           -               43,992      

Total 1,319,344  84,908      59,815      1,344,437  

Less accumulated depreciation

Land improvements 8,377        590           -               8,967        

Buildings and infrastructure 408,156     26,315      5,605        428,866     

Equipment 106,483     10,487      4,016        112,954     

Library materials 41,777      415           -               42,192      

Total accumulated depreciation 564,793     37,807      9,621        592,979     

   Capital assets, net 754,551$   47,101$     50,194$     751,458$   

Beginning Transfers/ Ending

Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Cost

Land* 31,388$     180$         95$           31,473$     

Land improvements 23,916      3,662        -               27,578      

Buildings and infrastructure 960,505     48,322      5,231        1,003,596  

Construction in progress* 68,997      51,453      65,834      54,616      

Equipment 148,054     15,408      4,764        158,698     

Library materials 42,792      591           -               43,383      

Total 1,275,652  119,616     75,924      1,319,344  

Less accumulated depreciation

Land improvements 7,859        518           -               8,377        

Buildings and infrastructure 383,597     25,270      711           408,156     

Equipment 100,226     10,692      4,435        106,483     

Library materials 41,384      393           -               41,777      

Total accumulated depreciation 533,066     36,873      5,146        564,793     

   Capital assets, net 742,586$   82,743$     70,778$     754,551$   

*Non-depreciable

2021

2020
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6. Unearned Revenue 
 
Unearned revenue as of June 30 is as follows (in thousands): 

  

 
 

7. Noncurrent Liabilities 
 
Noncurrent liabilities as of June 30 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020

Unearned summer tuition revenue 7,437$      8,072$      

Grants and contracts 2,494        2,568        

9,931$      10,640$     

Non

Beginning Ending Current Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion

Leases payable

Capital leases payable 158,190$  923$       16,925$   142,188$  9,076$     133,112$  

Total leases payable 158,190    923         16,925     142,188    9,076      133,112    

Other liabilities

Compensated absences 9,704       10,759     11,365     9,098       910         8,188       

Net pension liability 243,073    -             3,803      239,270    -             239,270    

Net other postemployment

  benefit liability 47,135     501         -             47,636     -             47,636     

Total other liabilities 299,912    11,260     15,168     296,004    910         295,094    

Total noncurrent liabilities 458,102$  12,183$   32,093$   438,192$  9,986$     428,206$  

Non

Beginning Ending Current Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion

Leases payable

Capital leases payable 166,273$  2,639$     10,722$   158,190$  9,205$     148,985$  

Total leases payable 166,273    2,639      10,722     158,190    9,205      148,985    

Other liabilities

Compensated absences 9,252       12,187     11,735     9,704       970         8,734       

Net pension liability 250,580    -             7,507      243,073    -             243,073    

Net other postemployment

  benefit liability 55,953     -             8,818      47,135     -             47,135     

Total other liabilities 315,785    12,187     28,060     299,912    970         298,942    

Total noncurrent liabilities 482,058$  14,826$   38,782$   458,102$  10,175$   447,927$  

2021

2020
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Capital leases consist of the following at June 30: 
 

 
 

Principal maturities and interest on capital leases payable for the next five years and in subsequent five-year periods as 
of June 30, 2021 are as follows (in thousands): 

 

 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020

Computer equipment and software leases, all with 1 to 3

year remaining terms with total annual payments ranging

from $1,015 to $204,036 and interest rates from 0.2% to 4%. 

177$         597$         

Energy savings leases with 9 to 15 year remaining terms,

total annual payments ranging from $72,576 to $1,035,057

and interest rates from 1.59% to 2.71%. 33,890      38,519      

Building leases with 2 - 13 year remaining terms, total

annual payments ranging from $432,216 to $637,020 and

interest rates ranging from 2.34% to  3.42%. 5,831        6,692        

Copier and software leases, with 1 to 4 year remaining

terms, total annual payments ranging from $171 to $133,320

and interest rates of 4%. 741           1,251        

Construction, renovation and design projects with 4 to 17

year remaining terms, annual payments beginning at

$4,070,000 and increasing to $7,680,000 and interest rates

of 2.63% to 3.56%. 101,549     111,131     

142,188$   158,190$   

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2022 9,076$      4,874$      13,950$     

2023 8,915        4,689        13,604      

2024 14,140      4,353        18,493      

2025 8,294        4,070        12,364      

2026 8,248        3,802        12,050      

2027-2031 45,578      14,178      59,756      

2032-2036 43,400      5,659        49,059      

2037-2038 4,537        111           4,648        

142,188$   41,736$     183,924$   
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7. Noncurrent Liabilities  
 

KCTCS has entered into three significant lease agreements with the Commonwealth of Kentucky.  The purpose of these 
leases is to finance construction, renovation, and design projects for campus facilities, which were approved under 
House Bill 235 (2014), and House Bill 303 (2016) of the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.  KCTCS 
has pledged as collateral general receipts, including student registration fees, and its debt service account. The first 
agreement was entered into on May 1, 2016 in the amount of $50.6 million and included a premium of $6.0 million and 
bond issuance costs of $329,204. The second agreement was entered into on April 12, 2017 in the amount of $65.6 
million and included a premium of $5.5 million, bond issuance costs of $396,563 and prepaid insurance of $252,315.  
The third agreement was entered into on June 20, 2018 in the amount of $27.8 million and included issuance costs of 
$48,000.  This lease requires variable interest only payments.  As of June 30, 2021, the interest rate was 1.14%.  KCTCS 
may elect to make an annual principal payment on this lease. 
 
Operating Leases - KCTCS is obligated under several operating leases for office equipment, classroom space, and 
office space with expirations through June 2035.  Rent expense was $2.2 million and $2.1 million for fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020.  Future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2021 are as follows (in thousands): 

 

2022 2,106$       

2023 1,596        

2024 1,522        

2025 1,414        

2026 1,169        

Thereafter 1,272        

9,079$       
 

 
8. Risk Management 
 
KCTCS is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.  These risks are covered by (1) the State Fire and Tornado 
Insurance Fund (the Fund), (2) Sovereign Immunity and the State Board of Claims, or (3) in the case of risks not covered 
by the Fund and Sovereign Immunity, commercial insurance.  The Fund covers losses to property from fire, wind, 
earthquake, flood, and other named perils between $5,000 and $1.0 million.  Losses in excess of $1.0 million are insured 
by commercial carriers under contract with the State Fire and Tornado Insurance Fund up to a maximum of $1.5 billion 
per occurrence. 

 
The Commonwealth of Kentucky is covered by sovereign immunity.  Per KRS 44.073, state institutions of higher 
education, including KCTCS, under KRS Chapter 164 are considered agencies of the state.  As such, KCTCS is covered 
by the Board of Claims for acts of negligence up to $200,000 for a single claim and an aggregate of $350,000 per 
negligent act.  The Board has primary and exclusive jurisdiction over all acts of negligence for state institutions of higher 
education.  For risks not covered by sovereign immunity, KCTCS has purchased commercial insurance policies covering 
risks of loss due to damage to property and automobiles, general and automobile liability claims, employee dishonesty, 
and student accidents.   
 
KCTCS has general liability insurance with an aggregate total limit of $3.0 million and a per occurrence limit of $1.0 
million without a deductible.  An umbrella policy extends the liability aggregate total limit to $10.0 million with a per 
occurrence limit of $10.0 million without a deductible. 
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Educator's Legal Liability coverage has been secured through commercial insurance to insure KCTCS' faculty and staff 
against claims arising from actions undertaken within the scope of their job responsibilities.  This coverage also extends 
to the KCTCS Board of Regents.  The limit is $2.0 million without a deductible.  There have been no significant reductions 
in insurance coverage from 2019 to 2020.  Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during the past three 
years. 
 
Limited Professional Liability insurance has been obtained, which covers all faculty and students who participate in allied 
health programs.  The coverage carries a $1.0 million per claim limit and $3.0 million annual aggregate with a $10,000 
deductible.  International Liability insurance has been obtained for employee and/or student trips to other countries that 
meet the required criteria.   A broad list of coverages with various limits are provided by this insurance. 

 
Cyber Liability insurance has been obtained, which covers, but is not limited to fraud loss, extortion threats, public 
relations expenses, ransomware loss, telecommunications loss, and business interruption costs.  The coverage carries 
a $1.0 million annual aggregate limit with a $25,000 deductible. 

 
Active Shooter/Violence in the Workplace coverage has been obtained, which provides coverage for public relations 
counsel, funeral and burial expenses, psychiatric care, medical/dental care, employee counseling, temporary security 
measures, rehabilitation expenses, personal accident expenses, and reward money for post event investigation tips.  
The coverage carries a $3.0 million annual aggregate limit for an act of workplace violence event with a $0 deductible 
and a $3.0 million annual aggregate for a stalking threat event with a $0 deductible. 

 
9. Natural Classification 
 
Operating expenses are shown by program on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  
The table, below, summarizes operating expenses (income) by natural classification for years ended June 30 (in 
thousands): 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020                                                   

Salaries and wages 243,546$   246,102$   

Employee benefits - other 83,295      85,121      

Employee benefits - pension and OPEB (53,986)     (71,476)     

Equipment, supplies and other services 102,580     86,843      

Student scholarships and financial aid 88,963      83,151      

Depreciation 37,807      36,873      

Fire commission 34,312      34,200      

Utilities 12,707      13,666      

549,224$   514,480$   
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Regular full-time employees, and regular part-time employees who work 25 hours or more per week, are required to 
participate in a retirement plan.  Employees may be an active participant in one of four plans, depending on plans 
available at the employee’s hire date, as described below: 

 
Upon consolidation -  Upon consolidation of Kentucky’s community and technical colleges into one system (KCTCS), 
community and technical college employees had the option to enter the KCTCS 403(b) defined contribution plan or to 
remain in the retirement plan in which they were enrolled:  for community college employees - the University of Kentucky 
(UK) 403(b) defined contribution plan; for technical college employees - Kentucky Teacher’s Retirement System (KTRS) 
or Kentucky Employee’s Retirement System (KERS).  Participants in the UK 403(b) plan contribute 5 percent and 
KCTCS contributes 10 percent.  UK had authorized Fidelity Investments and Teachers Insurance and Annuity 
Association (TIAA) as carriers for the plan.  KTRS and KERS are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plans 
each with a vesting period of 5 years.  KTRS and KERS Boards establish contribution rates for employees and 
employers.   

 
After consolidation and until December 31, 2013 - New employees had the option to participate in KTRS, KERS or the 
KCTCS 403(b) plan through December 31, 2013.  Vesting periods for the KCTCS 403(b) plan depend on date of hire:  
employees hired before July 1, 2009 are vested immediately; employees hired July 1, 2009, or later, including rehires, 
are vested after 5 years (60 months) of continuous service.  Employee contributions vest immediately.   

 
After December 31, 2013 – After this date, new employees only have the option to participate in the KCTCS 403(b) 
plan.  Full-time employees may elect to participate during the first 30 days of employment.  Part-time employees may 
elect to participate during the first 30 days of employment or after 90 days to determine if hours worked criteria have 
been met.  KCTCS has authorized American Century Investors, Fidelity Investments, Voya Financial and TIAA as 
carriers for the plan.  The 403(b) plan may be amended. 

 
Contributions are based on the participant’s eligible compensation for all plans and employer contributions forfeited prior 
to vesting are used to reduce future employer contributions for all plans.  KCTCS contributions for all retirement plans 
for fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled $28.0 million and $29.3 million.  Employees contributed $12.8 
million and $13.4 million for June 30, 2021 and 2020.  KCTCS total payroll costs for employees in a retirement plan 
were $211.6 million and $218.3 million for June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

 
Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) 
 
Pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statute (KRS) 161.250, the KTRS Board of Trustees is responsible for administration 
and management of the retirement system.  The Board may adopt procedures necessary to conduct the business of 
the retirement system.  Applicable provisions of the KRS shall control if an inconsistency exists between state law and 
policy.  KTRS issues a financial report, including financial statements and required supplementary information, which 
may be obtained by writing Kentucky Teacher's Retirement Systems, 479 Versailles Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601; 
by calling (502)573-3266; or by visiting https://trs.ky.gov/. 
 
KTRS Pension Benefits Provided - KTRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  KTRS retirees are entitled 
to a monthly benefit based on months of service and the average salary of 5 full fiscal years (highest 5 or last 3 based 
on date of participation) upon attainment of KTRS specified age (or age and service combinations). Participants are 
fully vested after completion of 60 months of service, 12 of which are current service.  Retirement benefits are generally 
2.5 percent of the employee's final 3 (or 5) year average compensation times years of service.  Employees with 5 years 
of continuous service are eligible to retire at age 60 (or at any age with 27 years of service).  Employees are eligible for 
service-related disability benefits regardless of years of service.  Five years of service is required for nonservice-related 
disability eligibility.  Disability benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable 
immediately without an actuarial reduction.  Retirees are covered by a $5,000 life insurance benefit. 
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KTRS Pension Contributions - Benefit and contribution rates are established by KRS 161.340, 161.550, and 161.565 
and may be amended by the KTRS Board.  For fiscal years June 30, 2021 and 2020, employees contributed 8.185 
percent or 12.855 percent, depending on personnel classification, and KCTCS' contributed 15.865 percent.  KCTCS’ 
contribution is an actuarially determined amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to 
finance the cost of benefits (pension, health, and life) earned during the year with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded liability.  KCTCS contributed $3.4 million and $3.7 million for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
KTRS Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - KCTCS reported a 
liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected a reduction in support from the State as follows 
at June 30: 
 

 
 
KCTCS' net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019.  KCTCS' proportion of net pension liability 
was based on actual contributions during the measurement period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.  At June 30, 
2021 and 2020, KCTCS' proportion was 0.33 and 0.35 percent and the Commonwealth's proportion was 0.41 percent 
and 0.45 percent. 

 
For years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS recognized pension income related to KTRS of $41.5 million and 
$42.8 million and income of $6.8 million and $6.5 million for support provided by the Commonwealth.  KCTCS reported 
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources as follows at June 30: 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  

 

2021 2020

KCTCS proportionate share of the net pension liability 49,358,362$   50,127,039$   

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability

   associated with KCTCS 60,113,460     63,626,879     

         Total 109,471,822$  113,753,918$  

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience (196,467)$           971,548$            

Changes in assumptions 1,254,676           14,836,326         

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension

     plan investments 365,319             -                        

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions 433,779             18,329,581         

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,363,815           -                        

     Total 5,221,122$         34,137,455$       

2021
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KTRS Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources (continued) -  
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 301,393$            1,904,528$         

Changes in assumptions 4,177,769           28,079,236         

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension

     plan investments -                        586,492             

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions 743,621             47,984,393         

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,730,338           -                        

     Total 8,953,121$         78,554,649$       

2020

 
 

As of June 30, 2021, KCTCS reported $3.4 million as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
KCTCS' contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension (income) expense for years ended June 30: 
 

 
 

KTRS Pension Actuarial Assumptions - Total pension liability (TPL) in the June 30, 2020 and 2019 measurement was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 

 
      

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on a projection of Scale BB to 2025, set forward two years for males and 
one year for females. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 and 2018 valuations were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2015 adopted by the KTRS Board on November 19, 2016. 

 
 

2022 (40,862,250)$   

2023 (14,442,202)     

2024 (451,673)          

2025 23,475,977      

(32,280,148)$   

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2019 and 2018

Inflation 3.00%

Salary increases 3.50% - 7.30%, average, including inflation

Investment rate of return 7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, 

including inflation

Municipal bond index rate 2.19% and 3.5%

Single equivalent interest rate 7.50%
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KTRS Pension Actuarial Assumptions (continued) - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was determined using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class for the June 30, 
2020 and 2019 measurements as provided by KTRS' investment consultant, are summarized below: 
 

 
 
KTRS Pension Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date – There were no changes 
since the prior measurement date.  
 
KTRS Pension Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of the 
collective net pension liability and KCTCS’ reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on KCTCS' 
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability. 

 
KTRS Pension Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.50 percent at June 30, 2020 and 2019.   
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made 
at the current contribution rates and that employer contributions will be made at the actuarially determined contribution 
rates for all fiscal years in the future.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target  Long-Term Expected Target  Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return Allocation Real Rate of Return

U.S. Equity 40% 4.60% 40% 4.20%

International Equity 22% 5.60% 22% 5.20%

Fixed Income 15% 0.00% 15% 1.20%

Additional Categories* 7% 2.50% 8% 3.20%

Real Estate 7% 4.30% 6% 3.80%

Private Equity 7% 7.70% 7% 6.30%

Cash 2% -0.50% 2% 0.90%

Total 100% 100%

* Includes hedge funds, high yield, non-U.S. developed bonds and private credit strategies.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
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KTRS Pension Sensitivity of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate - The following presents the net pension liability as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current 
discount rate at June 30: 

 
 
KTRS Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the fiduciary net position is available in 
separately issued KTRS financial reports. 
 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) 
 
The employees provided with pensions through the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) are in a defined 
benefit pension plan. House Bill 484 (2020) and House Bill 9 (2021) made significant changes to the governance and 
administrative structure of the Kentucky Retirement Systems. Most notably, establishing a 9-member board of trustees 
called the Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS) to oversee both KERS and the State Police Retirement System (SPRS). 
The administrative entity, traditionally known as KRS, is now the Kentucky Public Pensions Authority (KPPA) and will be 
governed by an 8-member board of trustees.  KPPA will provide administrative support, investment management, 
accounting, and legal services.  

KERS issues a financial report, including financial statements and required supplementary information which may be 
obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 
40601-6124 or by calling (502)696-8800. 
 
KERS Pension Benefits Provided - KERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Retirees covered by KERS 
are entitled to a monthly benefit based on months of service multiplied by the average salary of 5 full fiscal years (highest 
5 or last 5 based on date of participation) upon attainment of KERS specified age (or age and service combinations).  
Participants are fully vested after completion of 60 months of service.  Retirement benefits are determined as a percent 
of the employee's final 5-year average compensation times the employee's years of service.  Employees hired prior to 
September 1, 2008 can retire at any age with 27 years of service or at age 65 with 4 years of service.  Employees hired 
after September 1, 2008 can retire when their age plus years of service equals 87 (must be at least age 57) or at age 65 
with 5 years of service.  Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of service.  Five 
years of service is required for nonservice-related disability eligibility.  Disability benefits are determined based on 
participation date.  Death benefits are based on age, months of service and whether the employee was active or retired. 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)

KCTCS' proportionate

   share of the collective net

   pension liability $62,825,396 $49,358,362 $38,088,257

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)

KCTCS' proportionate

   share of the collective net

   pension liability $63,981,205 $50,127,039 $38,433,998

2021

2020

https://apps.legislature.ky.gov/record/20rs/hb484.html
https://apps.legislature.ky.gov/record/21rs/hb9.html
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KERS Pension Contributions - Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute.  Per Kentucky Revised 
Statute 61.565(3) contribution requirements of active employees and participating organizations are established and 
may be amended by the KRS Board.  KERS participants hired with an effective date prior to September 1, 2008 
contribute 5 percent of their covered compensation.  KERS participants hired with an effective date on or after 
September 1, 2008 contribute 6 percent of their covered compensation.  KCTCS contributed 49.47 percent for years 
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 for all KERS participants, regardless of hire date.  These amounts were actuarially 
determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the cost of benefits 
(41.06 percent for pension and 8.41 percent for health insurance for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020) earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  Contributions to the 
pension plan from KCTCS were $7.2 and $7.9 million for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
KERS Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - At June 30, 2021 
and 2020, KCTCS reported a liability of $189.9 million and $192.9 million for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 and the TPL used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, rolled-forward for June 30, 
2020 and 2019. KCTCS' proportion of the net pension liability was based on actual contributions made to KERS during 
the measurement period to determine the proportionate share of each participating employer.  At June 30, 2021 and 
2020, KCTCS' proportion was 1.34 percent and 1.37 percent.  

 
For years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS recognized income of $2.0 million and $1.1 million related to KERS.  
KCTCS reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources as follows at June 30: 

 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 1,078,875$         -$                       

Changes in assumptions 2,139,354           -                         

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension

     plan investments 700,866              505,579              

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                         7,961,699           

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7,233,760           -                         

     Total 11,152,855$       8,467,278$         

2021

 
 

 

 
 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 1,141,172$         -$                       

Changes in assumptions 5,874,772           -                         

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension

     plan investments 499,995              893,145              

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                         10,790,542         

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7,855,225           -                         

     Total 15,371,164$       11,683,687$       

2020



 

Continued 
 

40 

KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 
 

10. Pension Plans 
 
KERS Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources (continued) - 

 
As of June 30, 2021, KCTCS reported $7.2 million as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
KCTCS' contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
will be recognized in pension (income) expense for years ended June 30: 

 

2022 (4,158,038)$  

2023 (729,664)       

2024 164,302        

2025 175,217        

(4,548,183)$  
 

 
KERS Pension Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability (TPL) for KERS measured as of June 30, 2020 and 
2019 was determined using the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.  This valuation used the following 
actuarial methods and assumptions applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 

 
 
The mortality table used for active members is PUB-2010 General Mortality table projected with the ultimate rates from 
the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  The mortality table used for healthy retired 
members is a system-specific mortality table based on mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate 
rates from MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2020.   For disabled members, the mortality table 
used is PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and female rates, projected with the 
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges 
of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The ranges are combined by weighting the 
expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage.  
 
The net pension liability as of June 30, 2020 is based on the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation rolled-forward and the 
net pension liability as of June 30, 2019 is based on the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation rolled-forward.  Deferred 
outflows and inflows related to differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and 
amortized over a closed five-year period. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Valuation date June 30, 2019 and 2018 (rolled forward)

Experience study July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period 26 years

Asset valuation method 20% of the difference between the market value of assets 

and the expected actuarial value of assets is recognized

Inflation 2.30%

Salary increase 3.30% to 15.30%, varies by service

Investment rate of return 5.25%
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KERS Pension Actuarial Assumptions (continued) - The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic nominal 
rates of return for each major asset class for the June 30, 2020 and 2019 measurements are summarized in the following 
table: 

 

 
 

KERS Pension Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date – There have been no 
assumption changes since June 30, 2019.  House Bill 1, which passed during the 2019 special legislative session, 
allows certain employers in the KERS non-hazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the system as of June 30, 
2020.  Senate Bill 249 passed during the 2020 Legislative Session and delayed the effective date of cessation under 
these provisions to June 30, 2021.  Since employer’s elections were unknown at the time of the actuarial valuations, no 
adjustments were made to the Total Pension Liability to reflect this legislation. 
 
Senate Bill 249 also changed the funding period for the amortization of the unfunded liability to 30 years as of June 30, 
2019. Gains and losses incurred in future years will be amortized over separate 20-year amortization bases. This change 
did not impact the calculation of Total Pension Liability and only impacts the calculation of the contribution rates payable 
starting July 1, 2020. Additionally, House Bill 271 passed during the 2020 Legislative Session and removed provisions 
that reduce the monthly payment to a surviving spouse of a member whose death was due to a duty-related injury upon 
remarriage of the spouse. It also increased benefits for a very small number of beneficiaries. This did not have a material 
(or measurable) impact on the liability of the plans and therefore, we did not make any adjustment to the Total Pension 
Liability to reflect this legislation. There were no other material plan provision changes. 

 
House Bill 265, which passed during the 2018 legislative session, allowed certain employers within the KERS non-
hazardous system to contribute less than the actuarially determined contribution in the 2018/2019 fiscal year.  Since 
this is not expected to be an ongoing contribution reduction, determining the KERS non-hazardous employers’ 
proportionate share based on the employers’ actual contributions would not be reflective of the employers’ long-term 
contribution effort.  Instead, the proportionate share calculations for employers of the KERS non-hazardous system 
were based on the employers’ covered payroll provided for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, which would result in the 
same proportionate share allocation if all participating employers contributed the same contribution rate.   

 
KERS Pension Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of the 
collective net pension liability and the KCTCS reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on KCTCS 
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target  Long-Term Nominal Target  Long-Term Nominal

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return

Combined Equity 47% 13.65% 47% 11.70%

Global Bonds 20% -0.25% 20% 1.35%

Core Real Estate 5% 5.30% 5% 4.85%

Opportunistic 3% 2.25% 3% 2.97%

Real Return 15% 3.95% 15% 4.10%

Private Equity 7% 5.15% 7% 6.65%

Cash Equivalent 3% -0.75% 3% 0.20%

Total 100% 100%

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
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KERS Pension Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.25 percent at June 
30, 2020 and 2019. This discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments. Based 
on the stated assumptions and the projection of cash flows as of each fiscal year ending, the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position and future contributions were projected to be sufficient to finance all the future benefit payments of the 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of the projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate includes an assumption regarding future employer 
contributions. Future contributions are projected in accordance with the current funding policy, as most recently revised 
by Senate Bill 249. Legislation has been enacted for multiple years (for FY 18/19, FY 19/20, and FY 20/21) that allowed 
certain employers (referred to as “Quasi” agencies) in the KERS Non-Hazardous Fund to contribute 41.06% of pay into 
the retirement fund, which is significantly less than the actuarially determined contribution rate. The discount rate used 
remains unchanged if these Quasi agencies were assumed to continue making contributions at a reduced rate in future 
years.   
 
KERS Pension Sensitivity of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
- The following presents the net pension liability as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate at 
June 30: 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(4.25%) (5.25%) (6.25%)

KCTCS' proportionate share of the

   collective net pension liability $217,518,025 $189,911,168 $167,223,562

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(4.25%) (5.25%) (6.25%)

KCTCS' proportionate share of the

   collective net pension liability $221,186,561 $192,945,631 $169,607,065

2020

2021

 
 
KERS Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued KERS financial reports. 
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The following tables summarize KCTCS' net pension liability, deferred inflows and outflows of resources and pension 
(income) expense recognized for the fiscal years ending June 30: 

 

 
 

 11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) 
 
KCTCS employees hired prior to July 1, 2009 participate in either the KCTCS Retiree Health OPEB Plan, the Kentucky 
Teachers Retirement System OPEB Plan or the Kentucky Employees Retirement System OPEB Plan depending on 
the retirement plan in which they participate.  Employees hired after July 1, 2009 and before January 1, 2014 
participate in either the Kentucky Teachers Retirement System OPEB Plan or the Kentucky Employees Retirement 
System OPEB Plan.  Each OPEB plan is described in detail in the following section. 

 
Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) OPEB Plan 

 
The KTRS OPEB Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan with a special funding situation.  
The plan includes medical insurance and life insurance plans and is administered by the Teachers Retirement System 
of the State of Kentucky (TRS).  TRS publishes a financial report located at https://trs.ky.gov/financial-reports-
information.   

 
Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute.  Contribution requirements of active employees and 
participating organizations are established and may be amended by the TRS Board.   

 
Medical Insurance Plan 

 
KTRS Medical Plan Description - Kentucky Revised Statute 161.675 requires KTRS to provide post-employment 
healthcare benefits to eligible members and dependents. The KTRS Medical Insurance benefit is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit plan with a special funding situation.  Changes to the plan may be made by the 
KTRS Board of Trustees, the Kentucky Department of Employee Insurance, and the General Assembly. 

 
 
 
 

KERS KTRS Total

Net pension liability 189,911,168$  49,358,362$   239,269,530$  

Deferred outflows of resources 11,152,855$   5,221,122$     16,373,977$   

Deferred inflows of resources 8,467,278$     34,137,455$   42,604,733$   

Pension (income) expense recognized (2,032,563)$    (41,453,872)$  (43,486,435)$  

KERS KTRS Total

Net pension liability 192,945,631$  50,127,039$   243,072,670$  

Deferred outflows of resources 15,371,164$   8,953,121$     24,324,285$   

Deferred inflows of resources 11,683,687$   78,554,649$   90,238,336$   

Pension (income) expense recognized (1,139,434)$    (42,763,435)$  (43,902,869)$  

2021

2020

https://trs.ky.gov/financial-reports-information
https://trs.ky.gov/financial-reports-information
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KTRS Medical Plan Benefits Provided - The member must have retired for service or disability to be eligible for 
benefits.  Retired members are provided a monthly supplement to be used for their health insurance which is obtained 
through the Kentucky Employees Health Plan or the KTRS Medicare Eligible Health Plan, depending on age and 
Medicare eligibility. The TRS Board approves the supplement amount. Members pay the portion of the premium that 
exceeds the supplement.   

 
KTRS Medical Plan Contributions - Participants contribute 3.75 percent of their covered compensation, KCTCS 
contributes 3.00 percent and 0.75 percent is funded by state appropriation.  The state contributes the net cost of 
premiums for members who retired on or after July 1, 2010 who are in the non-Medicare eligible group. Premiums 
collected from retirees and investment interest help meet the medical expenses of the plan.  KCTCS contributed 
$819,562 and $923,483 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.  

 
KTRS Medical Plan Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 

 
 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected to 2025 with projection scale BB and 
set forward two years for males and one year for females for the period after service retirement and for dependent 
beneficiaries. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set forward two years for males and seven years for females is 
used for the period after disability retirement.   
 
The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g., initial per capita costs, health care cost trends) used in the June 30, 2019 
and 2018 valuation were based on a review of recent plan experience done concurrently with the June 30, 2019 and 
2018 valuation. The health care cost trend assumption was updated for the June 30, 2019 and 2018 valuations and 
was shown as an assumption change in the TOL roll forward while the change in initial per capita claims costs were 
included with experience in the TOL roll forward. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution analysis 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
 
 
 
 

Valuation date June 30, 2019 and 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2020 and 2019

Inflation 3.00%

Real wage growth 0.50%

Wage inflation 3.50%

Salary increases 3.50% - 7.20%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 8.00%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation

Healthcare cost trend rate Pre-65: 7.25% and 7.50% decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 

5.00% by FY2029.  Post-65: 5.25% and 5.50% decreasing to an 

ultimate trend rate of 5.00% by FY2022.

Medicare Part B premiums 6.49% and 2.63% decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00% by FY 

2031.

Municipal bond index rate 2.19% and 3.50% 

Discount rate 8.00%

Single equivalent interest rate 8.00%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
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KTRS Medical Plan Actuarial Assumptions (continued) – The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real 
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

 

 
 

KTRS Medical Plan Changes in Assumptions Since Prior Measurement Date – For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021, the healthcare cost trend rate for Pre-65 decreased from 7.50 percent for fiscal year 2020 to 7.25 percent for 
fiscal year 2021 and Post-65 decreased from 5.50 percent for fiscal year 2020 to 5.25 percent for fiscal year 2021.  
Medicare Part B premiums increased to 6.49 percent for fiscal year 2021 from 2.63 percent for fiscal year 2020.  The 
municipal bond index rate decreased from 3.50 percent to 2.19 percent.   For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, 
the healthcare cost trend rate for Pre-65 decreased from 7.75 percent for fiscal year 2019 to 7.50 percent for fiscal 
year 2020 and Post-65 decreased from 5.75 percent for fiscal year 2019 to 5.50 percent for fiscal year 2020.  Medicare 
Part B premiums increased to 2.63 percent for fiscal year 2020 from 0.0 percent for fiscal year 2019.  The municipal 
bond index rate decreased from 3.89 percent to 3.50 percent.   
 
KTRS Medical Plan Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of 
the collective net OPEB liability and KCTCS’ reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on KCTCS’ 
proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability. 

 
KTRS Medical Plan Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 8.00 percent for 
fiscal year 2021 and 2020. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan 
member contributions will be made at current contribution rates and the employer contributions will be made at 
statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available 
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB 
liability. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Long Term Long Term

Target  Expected Real Target  Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return

Global Equity 58.00% 5.40% 58.00% 5.10%

Fixed Income 9.00% 0.00% 9.00% 1.20%

Real Estate 6.50% 4.30% 6.50% 3.80%

Private Equity 8.50% 7.70% 8.50% 6.30%

Other Additional Categories 17.00% 2.50% 17.00% 3.20%

Cash (LIBOR) 1.00% -0.50% 1.00% 0.90%

Total 100% 100%

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
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KTRS Medical Plan Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend 
Rates - The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current 
discount rate at June 30: 

 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current 
healthcare cost trend rates at June 30: 

 

 
 

KTRS Medical Plan OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - At June 
30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS reported a net OPEB liability of $12.3 million and $15.4 million for its proportionate share 
of the collective net OPEB liability that reflected a reduction in support from the State.  The collective net OPEB liability 
was measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.  Total OPEB liability, used to calculate collective net OPEB liability, 
was based on a projection of KCTCS’s long-term share of contributions to the plan relative to projected contributions 
of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2020 and 2019, KCTCS’s proportion was 0.49% 
and 0.53%.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(7%) (8%) (9%)

Net OPEB liability $14,889,000 $12,319,000 $10,173,000

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(7%) (8%) (9%)

Net OPEB liability $18,255,000 $15,410,000 $13,027,000

2021

2020

1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(6.25% and 4.25% 

decreasing to 4%)

(7.25% and 5.25% 

decreasing to 5%)

(8.25% and 6.25% 

decreasing to 6%)

Net OPEB liability $9,765,000 $12,319,000 $15,467,000

1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(6.50% and 4.50% 

decreasing to 4%)

(7.50% and 5.50% 

decreasing to 5%)

(8.50% and 6.50% 

decreasing to 6%)

Net OPEB liability $12,544,000 $15,410,000 $18,933,000

2021

2020
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KTRS Medical Plan OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(continued) - The KCTCS proportionate share of OPEB liability, related State support and the total net OPEB liability 
that is associated with KCTCS were as follows at June 30: 
 

 
 
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS recognized OPEB income related to the plan, of $1.6 million 
and $1.0 million which includes $0.4 million and $0.4 million of support provided by the Commonwealth of Kentucky.   

       
KCTCS reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources as follows at June 30: 

 

 
 
 
 

2021 2020

KCTCS proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 12,319,000$   15,410,000$   

State's proportionate share of the net pension OPEB

   associated with KCTCS 5,431,000       6,873,000       

         Total 17,750,000$   22,283,000$   

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB

     plan investments 401,000$            -$                      

Change in assumptions 747,000             -                        

Difference between expected and actual experience -                        5,252,000           

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                        3,621,000           

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 819,562             -                        

     Total 1,967,562$         8,873,000$         

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB

     plan investments -$                      3,730,000$         

Change in assumptions 410,000             -                        

Difference between expected and actual experience 66,000               -                        

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                        3,059,000           

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 923,483             -                        

     Total 1,399,483$         6,789,000$         

2021

2020
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KTRS Medical Plan OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(continued) - Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $819,562 resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year will be included as a reduction of the net 
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.  Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources will 
be recognized in OPEB (income) expense as follows for years ended June 30: 

 

 
 
KTRS Medical Plan Changes of Benefit Terms - There were no changes for fiscal years June 30, 2021 or 2020.   
 
KTRS Medical Plan OPEB Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued KTRS financial report. 

 
Life Insurance Plan 
 
KTRS Life Plan Description - KTRS administers the life insurance plan as provided by Kentucky Revised Statute 
161.655 to eligible active and retired members. The life insurance plan is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined 
benefit plan. Changes made to the plan may be made by the KTRS Board of Trustees and the General Assembly. 

 
KTRS Life Plan Benefits Provided - The life insurance plan provides a benefit of $5,000 to members who retire based 
on service or disability and $2,000 to active contributing members.  The life insurance benefit is payable upon the 
death of the member.   

 
KTRS Life Plan Contributions – The Commonwealth contributes 0.03 percent of the gross annual payroll of members 
and KCTCS contributes 0.04 percent of each participants covered compensation.  KCTCS contributed $15,430 and 
$20,106 for fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

 
KTRS Life Plan Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement as the health plan: 

 

 
 
 
 
 

2022 (1,619,000)$  

2023 (1,589,000)   

2024 (1,594,000)   

2025 (1,392,000)   

2026 (1,127,000)   

          Thereafter (404,000)      

(7,725,000)$  

Valuation date June 30, 2019 and 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2020 and 2019

Inflation 3.00%

Real wage growth 0.50%

Wage inflation 3.50%

Salary increases 3.50% - 7.20%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 7.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation

Municipal bond index rate 2.19% and 3.50%

Discount rate 7.50%

Single equivalent interest rate 7.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
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KTRS Life Plan Actuarial Assumptions (continued) - Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality 
Table projected to 2025 with projection scale BB and set forward two years for males and one year for females for 
the period after service retirement and for dependent beneficiaries. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set forward 
two years for males and seven years for females is used for the period after disability retirement.   
 
The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g., initial per capita costs, health care cost trends) used in the June 30, 2019 
and 2018 valuations were based on a review of recent plan experience done concurrently with the June 30, 2019 and 
2018 valuations. The health care cost trend assumption was updated for the June 30, 2019 and 2018 valuations and 
was shown as an assumption change in the TOL roll forward while the change in initial per capita claims costs were 
included with experience in the TOL roll forward. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following table: 
 

 
 

KTRS Life Plan Changes in Assumptions Since Prior Measurement Date – For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, the municipal bond index rate decreased from 3.50 percent to 2.19 percent and from 3.89 percent to 3.50 
percent, respectively.   
 
KTRS Life Plan Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of the 
collective net OPEB liability and the KCTCS reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on KCTCS’ 
proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability. 

 
KTRS Life Plan Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.50 percent for fiscal 
years 2021 and 2020. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer 
contributions will be made at statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
 

Long Term Long Term

Target  Expected Real Target  Expected Real

Asset Class* Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return

U.S. Equity 40.00% 4.60% 40.00% 4.30%

International Equity 23.00% 5.60% 23.00% 5.20%

Fixed Income 18.00% 0.00% 18.00% 1.20%

Real Estate 6.00% 4.30% 6.00% 3.80%

Private Equity 5.00% 7.70% 5.00% 6.30%

Other Additional Categories 6.00% 2.50% 6.00% 3.20%

Cash (LIBOR) 2.00% -0.50% 2.00% 0.90%

Total 100% 100%

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

* As the life insurance plan investment policy is subject to change, the above reflects the pension allocation and 

returns that achieve the target 7.5% long-term rate of return.  
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KTRS Life Plan Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the net 
OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate at June 30: 
 

 
 

 
 
KTRS Life Plan OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - At June 30, 
2021 and 2020, KCTCS reported a net OPEB liability of $299,000 and $289,000 for its proportionate share of the 
collective net OPEB liability that reflected a reduction for state support provided to KCTCS. The collective net OPEB 
liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the collective net 
OPEB liability was based on a projection of KCTCS’s long-term share of contributions to the plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, KCTCS’s 
proportion was 0.86% and 0.93%. The amount recognized by KCTCS as its proportionate share of the OPEB liability, 
the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with KCTCS were as 
follows at June 30: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

Net OPEB liability $433,000 $299,000 $189,000

2021

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

Net OPEB liability $427,000 $289,000 $175,000

2020

2021 2020

KCTCS proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 299,000$        289,000$        

State's proportionate share of the net pension OPEB

   associated with KCTCS -                    -                    

         Total 299,000$        289,000$        
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KTRS Life Plan OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources (continued) -
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS recognized OPEB expense of $33,676 and $25,074 associated 
with the KTRS life insurance plan and reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources as follows at June 30: 
 

 
 

 
 
Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $15,430 resulting from contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year will be included as a reduction of the net OPEB liability 
in the year ended June 30, 2022.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows for years ended June 30: 

 

 
 

KTRS Life Plan Changes of Benefit Terms - There were no changes for fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 or 2020.   
 
KTRS Life Plan OPEB Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available 
in the separately issued KTRS financial report.  

 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB

     plan investments 42,000$             -$                      

Difference between expected and actual experience 5,000                 4,000                 

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                        36,000               

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 15,430               -                        

     Total 62,430$             40,000$             

2021

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB

     plan investments 60,000$             -$                      

Difference between expected and actual experience -                        6,000                 

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                        28,000               

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 20,106               -                        

     Total 80,106$             34,000$             

2020

2022 14,000$     

2023 5,000        

2024 (4,000)       

2025 (6,000)       

2026 (3,000)       

          Thereafter 1,000        

7,000$      
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Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) OPEB Plan 

 
KERS OPEB Plan Description - The KERS OPEB Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB 
plan, which was available to KCTCS employees hired prior to January 1, 2014.  This plan provides medical insurance 
for eligible retirees and is administered by Kentucky Retirement System (KRS) who publishes a financial report 
located at https://kyret.ky.gov.      

 
KERS OPEB Benefits Provided – Benefits provided depend on the plan Tier in which a member is enrolled.  There 
are three Tiers and members are assigned to Tiers depending on their participation date.  Tier 1 includes members 
with a participation date prior to July 1, 2003.  Members in Tier 1 are eligible for benefits if they are receiving a 
retirement payment.  Tier 1 benefits include a portion of a medical premium paid by KERS.  The amount of the medical 
premium paid is a percentage that is determined based on the number of years of service.  Tier 2 includes members 
with participation dates of July 1, 2003 through August 31, 2008.  Members in Tier 2 are eligible for benefits if they 
are receiving a retirement payment and have at least 120 months of service at retirement.  Tier 3 includes members 
with a participation date after August 31, 2008.  Members in Tier 3 are eligible for benefits if they are receiving a 
retirement payment and have at least 180 months of service at retirement.  Tier 2 and Tier 3 benefits include a monthly 
premium allowance of $10 for each year of service.  The monthly premium allowance is increased by 1.5 percent 
each July 1.   

 
KERS OPEB Contributions - Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute.  Per Kentucky Revised 
Statute 61.565(3) contribution requirements of active employees and participating organizations are established and 
may be amended by the KRS Board.  KERS participants hired with an effective date on or after September 1, 2008 
contribute 1 percent of their covered compensation. KERS participants hired prior to September 1, 2008 do not 
contribute to the plan but do receive plan benefits. KCTCS contributed 8.41 percent for years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020. This rate was actuarially determined to produce an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. KCTCS contributed $1.5 million and $1.6 million for years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 and the implicit subsidy was $512,352 and $366,078. 

 
KERS OPEB Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 

 
 
The mortality table used for active members is PUB-2010 General Mortality table projected with the ultimate rates 
from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  The mortality table used for healthy retired 
members is a system-specific mortality table based on mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the 
ultimate rates from MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2019.   For disabled members, the 
mortality table used is PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and female rates, 
projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  

 
 

Valuation date June 30, 2019 and 2018 (rolled forward)

Measurement date June 30, 2020 and 2019

Inflation 2.30%

Payroll growth rate 0.00%

Salary increases 3.30% to 15.30%, varies by service

Investment rate of return 6.25%

Healthcare cost trend rate Pre-65: 6.40% beginning January 1, 2022, decreasing to an 

ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over 14 years.  Post-65: 2.90%, 

beginning January 1, 2023, increasing to an ultimate trend rate of 

4.05% over 14 years.

https://kyret.ky.gov/
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KERS OPEB Actuarial Assumptions (continued) - The long-term expected rate of return was determined by using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each 
asset class. The ranges are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage.  The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

 

Target  Long-Term Nominal Target  Long-Term Nominal

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return

Combined Equity 53% 13.65% 53% 11.70%

Global Bonds 13% -0.25% 14% 1.35%

Real Return 15% 3.95% 15% 4.10%

Private Equity 10% 6.65% 10% 6.65%

Core Real Estate 5% 5.30% 5% 4.85%

Opportunistic 3% 2.25% 3% 2.97%

Cash Equivalent 1% -0.75% 1% 0.20%

Total 100% 100%

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

 
 

KERS OPEB Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date – For the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2021, the assumed increase in future health care costs was reviewed during the June 30, 2019 valuation 
process and was updated to better reflect more current expectations relating to anticipated future increase in the 
medical costs. The June 30, 2020 actuarial information reflects the anticipated savings from the repeal of the “Cadillac 
Tax” and “Health Insurer Fee”, which occurred in December of 2019. The assumed load on pre-Medicare premiums 
to reflect the cost of the Cadillac Tax was removed and the Medicare premiums were reduced by 11 percent to reflect 
the repeal of the Health Insurer Fee. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the KERS Board of Trustees adopted 
new actuarial assumptions.  These assumptions were based on an actuarial experience study for the period ending 
June 30, 2018.  Key changes include replacing the base retiree mortality tables with a KERS-specific mortality table 
developed using the actual mortality experience of non-disabled retirees in KERS.  Mortality tables for disabled 
retirees and active members were updated with Public Retirement Mortality tables.  In addition, termination rates and 
rates of disability incidence were increased.  Retirement rates were decreased slightly for members with a 
participation date prior to July 1, 2003.  For members with a participation date on or after July 1, 2003, retirement 
rates were set equal to 80% of the retirement rates applicable for the pre July 1, 2003 participants for ages below 65. 
 
House Bill 1, which passed during the 2019 special legislative session, allows certain employers in the KERS non-
hazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the system as of June 30, 2020.  Senate Bill 249 passed during the 
2020 Legislative Session and delayed the effective date of cessation under these provisions to June 30, 2021.  Since 
employer’s elections were unknown at the time of the actuarial valuations, no adjustments were made to the Total 
OPEB Liability to reflect this legislation. 
 
Senate Bill 249 also changed the funding period for the amortization of the unfunded liability to 30 years as of June 
30, 2019. Gains and losses incurred in future years will be amortized over separate 20-year amortization bases. This 
change did not impact the calculation of Total OPEB Liability and only impacts the calculation of the contribution rates 
payable starting July 1, 2020. House Bill 265, which passed during the 2018 legislative session, allowed certain 
employers within the non-hazardous plan to contribute less than the actuarially determined contribution in the 
2018/2019 fiscal year.  Since this is not expected to be an ongoing contribution reduction, determining the non-
hazardous employers’ proportionate share based on the employers’ actual contributions would not be reflective of the 
employers’ long-term contribution effort.  Instead, the proportionate share calculations for employers of the non-
hazardous plan were based on the employers’ covered payroll provided for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, which 
would result in the same proportionate share allocation if all participating employers contributed the same rate. There 
were no other material plan provision changes. 
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KERS OPEB Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of the 
collective net OPEB liability and KCTCS’ reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on KCTCS 
proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability. 

 
KERS OPEB Discount Rate - For measurement dates June 30, 2020 and 2019, the discount rate used to determine 
the total OPEB liability was 5.43 percent and 5.73 percent.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the 
discount rate assumed that contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.  
For measurement dates June 30, 2020 and 2019, the discount rate determination used an expected rate of return of 
6.25 percent and a municipal bond rate of 2.45 percent and 3.13 percent, respectively, which was reported in Fidelity 
Index’s “20 –Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 30, 2020 and June 28, 2019. However, the cost associated 
with the implicit employer subsidy was not included in the calculation of the actuarially determined contributions, and 
any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the KRS’ trusts. Therefore, the municipal bond 
rate was applied to future expected benefit payments associated with the implicit subsidy. 

 
KERS OPEB Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
- The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate as 
of June 30: 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(4.43%) (5.43%) (6.43%)

Net OPEB liability $40,572,173 $34,040,156 $28,678,711

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(4.73%) (5.73%) (6.73%)

Net OPEB liability $36,160,370 $30,368,762 $25,601,059

2021

2020

 
 

The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current 
healthcare cost trend rates as of June 30: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(5.40% and 4% 

decreasing to 

3.05%)

(6.40% and 5% 

decreasing to 

4.05%)

(7.40% and 6% 

decreasing to 

4.05%)

Net OPEB liability $28,650,459 $34,040,156 $40,568,371

2021
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KERS OPEB Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
(continued) - 

1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(6% and 4% 

decreasing to 

3.05%)

(7% and 5% 

decreasing to 

4.05%)

(8% and 6% 

decreasing to 

4.05%)

Net OPEB liability $25,800,308 $30,368,762 $35,895,039

2020

  
 

KERS OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources – KCTCS’ net OPEB 
liability, measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, was $34.0 million and $30.4 million.  Its proportionate share of the 
collective net OPEB liability was 1.34 percent and 1.37 percent as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 and was determined 
using employers’ actual contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.  KCTCS recognized OPEB 
(income) expense of $0.2 million and $(0.3) million for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. KCTCS reported 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources as follows at June 30: 

 

 
 
 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 2,817,200$         3,380,459$         

Changes in assumptions 2,491,559           59,153                

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB

     plan investments 652,971              177,786              

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                         3,070,647           

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,993,987           -                         

     Total 7,955,717$         6,688,045$         

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                       4,844,017$         

Changes in assumptions 3,982,655           91,346                

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB

     plan investments 128,617              327,793              

Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS

     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                         2,994,621           

KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,975,002           -                         

     Total 6,086,274$         8,257,777$         

2021

2020



 

Continued 
 

56 

KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 
 
 
11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB)  

 
KERS OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources (continued) - Of the 
total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $1.5 million, resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year, will be included as a reduction of the net 
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
will be recognized in OPEB (income) expense as follows: 
 

2022 22,510$       

2023 (835,733)      

2024 (52,669)       

2025 139,577       

(726,315)$    
 

 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued KERS financial report. 

 
KCTCS Retiree Health OPEB Plan 

 
The KCTCS Retiree Health OPEB Plan (KCTCS OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit other 
postemployment benefit plan which is administered by KCTCS and does not issue a stand-alone financial report.  
This plan provides healthcare benefits for eligible retirees who participate in the 403(b) defined contribution plan and 
retiree eligible spouses and/or dependents. The KCTCS OPEB Plan was closed to new entrants as of July 1, 2009.  
The KCTCS OPEB Plan is funded by an irrevocable IRS Section 115 trust which KCTCS established during the year 
ended June 30, 2013 with a contribution of $163.7 million (KCTCS OPEB Trust).   

 
Employees and surviving spouses participating in this plan include former University of Kentucky faculty and staff; 
KCTCS 403(b) participants with a hire date prior to July 1, 2009; and University of Kentucky opt-over retirees. 

 
KCTCS OPEB Plan Benefits Provided - Benefits are provided through a third-party insurer and cover the partial cost 
of the monthly health insurance premium which is based on Medicare retiree status and stated Medicare coverage 
rates.  Pre-Medicare eligible employees have the same healthcare plan choices as active employees.  Post-Medicare 
eligible employees receive monthly benefits determined to meet the premium obligations for the Medicare Advantage 
Plan.  

 
KCTCS OPEB Plan Contributions - There were no contributions during fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

 
The plan covered the following as of the measurement dates of June 30:  

2020 2019

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 863              863              

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 80                80                

Active employees 1,338            1,338            

  Total 2,281            2,281            
 

 
KCTCS OPEB Plan Net OPEB Asset - The net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 and the 
total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2019 which was rolled-forward for the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 
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KCTCS OPEB Plan Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 

Valuation date July 1, 2019 (rolled forward for June 30, 2020)

Salary increases 3.0%

Investment rate of return 6.5% and 7.0%

Healthcare cost trend rate For June 30, 2020 and 2019, 7.35% KCTCS Pre-65; 7.01% 

KCTCS Post-65; 6.88% UK Pre-65; 3.33% and 31.25% UK Post-

65 to an ultimate rate of 4.5% for 2031 and later years.
 

 
Mortality rates for healthy members were based on PUB-2010 Mortality Tables for “Teachers” and “General” 
Employees Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2019.  Mortality rates for disabled members were based on PUB-
2010 Disabled Retiree Table for “Non-Safety” Employees Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2019.  

 
The long-term expected rate of return on plan investments is 6.5 percent and was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset 
class included in the plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30 are summarized in the following table: 
 

  

Long-Term  Long-Term  

Target Expected Real Rate Target Expected Real Rate

Allocation of Return Allocation of Return

Global Equity 52.30% 4.78% 52.70% 4.70%

Core Bonds 17.50% 1.66% 16.90% 1.50%

Diversifying Strategies 9.60% 4.10% 10.50% 4.60%

Private Real Estate 5.30% 4.59% 8.70% 4.30%

Credit 7.00% 5.46% 6.90% 4.90%

Public Natural Resources 3.90% 4.10% 4.10% 4.40%

Cash 1.00% 0.00% 0.20% 0.00%

REITS 3.40% 4.98% 0.00% 0.00%

Total 100% 100%

June 30, 2019June 30, 2020

 
 
KCTCS OPEB Plan Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.5 percent and 
7.0 percent for June 30, 2020 and 2019.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.  Based on those 
assumptions, the fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected payments for current active 
and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on the plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
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KCTCS OPEB Plan Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Asset)  

 
Total OPEB 

Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net 

Position

Net OPEB Liability 

(Asset)

Balances at 6/30/19 172,311,237$      196,292,759$      (23,981,522)$      

Changes for the year:

Service cost 2,877,496           -                         2,877,496           

Interest 12,131,312         -                         12,131,312         

(4,044,678)          -                         (4,044,678)          

Changes in assumptions (26,946,517)        -                         (26,946,517)        

Net investment income -                         12,604,469         (12,604,469)        

Benefit payments (3,833,397)          (3,833,397)          -                         

Administrative expense -                         (43,578)               43,578                

Net changes (19,815,784)        8,727,494           (28,543,278)        

Balances at 6/30/20 152,495,453$      205,020,253$      (52,524,800)$      

Balances at 6/30/20 152,495,453$      205,020,253$      (52,524,800)$      

Changes for the year:

Service cost 2,079,652           -                         2,079,652           

Interest 10,682,592         -                         10,682,592         

Changes of benefit terms 6,785,833           -                         6,785,833           

(606,592)             -                         (606,592)             

Changes in assumptions 3,311,992           -                         3,311,992           

Net investment income -                         2,302,681           (2,302,681)          

Benefit payments (4,000,969)          (4,000,969)          -                         

Administrative expense -                         (98,655)               98,655                

Net changes 18,252,508         (1,796,943)          20,049,451         

Balances at 6/30/21 170,747,961$      203,223,310$      (32,475,349)$      

Differences between expected and actual 

experience

Differences between expected and actual 

experience

 
 

KCTCS OPEB Plan Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date - For the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2021, required retiree contributions for single only coverage was reduced by approximately 50.0 
percent in most cases. Coverage for additional dependents was reduced by the same dollar amount as the single 
only coverage. Medical trend for UK Post-65 was updated to reflect the repeal of the health care fee. The mortality 
improvement scale was updated from MP-2018 to MP-2019. Expected return on assets was updated from 7.0 percent 
to 6.5 percent. The excise tax on high-cost health coverage is no longer valued. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2020, medical trend, expected medical claims and health care cost aging were updated to better reflect expected 
experience of the plan.  The base mortality table for healthy employees was updated from 2006 base rates using the 
RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table to PUB-2010 Mortality Tables for “Teachers” and “General” Employees.  
The base mortality table for disabled retirees was updated from 2006 base rates from the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree 
Mortality Table for “Non-Safety” Employees.  The mortality improvement scale was updated from MP-2017 to MP-
2018.  Post-65 retirees who waived coverage are no longer assumed to later elect coverage. 

 
KCTCS OPEB Plan Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of 
the net OPEB asset and KCTCS’ reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the net OPEB asset. 
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KCTCS OPEB Plan Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend 
Rates - The following presents the net OPEB asset, as well as what the net OPEB asset would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.5%) (6.5%) (7.5%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (6,775,840)$    (32,475,349)$  (53,373,352)$  

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (29,877,797)$  (52,524,800)$  (71,001,146)$  

2021

2020

 
 
The following presents the net OPEB asset, as well as what the net OPEB asset would be if it were calculated using 
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare 
cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(6.35%, 6.01%, 

5.88% and 2.33% 

increasing to 3.5%)

(7.35%, 7.01%, 

6.88% and 3.33% 

increasing to 4.5%)

(8.35%, 8.01%, 

7.88% and 4.33% 

increasing to 5.5%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (55,649,055)$      (32,475,349)$      (3,863,487)$        

1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(6.35%, 6.01%, 

5.88% and 30.25% 

decreasing to 3.5%)

(7.35%, 7.01%, 

6.88% and 31.25% 

decreasing to 4.5%)

(8.35%, 8.01%, 

7.88% and 32.25% 

decreasing to 5.5%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (71,832,629)$      (52,524,800)$      (28,853,751)$      

2021

2020
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KCTCS OPEB Plan OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - For the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS recognized OPEB income of $9.2 million and $26.3 million associated with the plan 
and reported deferred inflows of resources as follows at June 30:  

 

 
 

Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB (income) expense as follows: 
 

2022 (10,305,953)$ 

2023 (4,008,549)     

2024 475,137         

2025 2,380,833      

(11,458,532)$ 
 

 
KCTCS OPEB Plan Payable to the Plan - At June 30, 2021 and 2020, KCTCS had no amounts payable for 
contributions to the plan.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                       7,371,696$         

Changes of assumptions 2,419,272           15,164,237         

Difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB 

plan investments, net of deferred ouflows 8,658,129           -                         

    Total 11,077,401$       22,535,933$       

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                       16,463,322$       

Changes of assumptions -                         22,330,894         

Difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB 

plan investments, net of deferred ouflows -                         1,904,138           

    Total -$                       40,698,354$       

2021

2020
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The following table summarizes the significant components of KCTCS’ net OPEB liability (asset), deferred inflows 
and outflows of resources and OPEB (income) expense recognized for the fiscal years ended June 30: 
 

 
  

In addition to the OPEB plans summarized in the table, above, KCTCS also maintains a long-term disability plan for 
community college employees who did not opt in to the KCTCS benefit system.  This plan was initially funded through a 
trust and is now funded as claims arise.  The estimated liability for long-term disability claims totaled $1.0 million and $1.1 
million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 and is included in net other postemployment benefit liability on the Statements of 
Net Position. 
 
12. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Construction Commitments - The estimated cost to complete construction projects under contract at June 30, 2021 is 
$39.6 million.  The projects are to be financed principally by appropriations from the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
 
Claims and Litigation - KCTCS is a party to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of 
business.  Among these matters is the “Bennett v. KCTCS, et al” class action lawsuit, which was filed on October 1, 2018 
in Franklin Circuit Court.  This lawsuit names KCTCS as a party defendant for how KCTCS collects debts through the 
Department of Revenue.  As of October 7, 2021, KCTCS management is unable to estimate the likelihood or range of 
any potential liability, and accordingly, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements at June 30, 2021.  

 
Government Grants - KCTCS receives financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants and 
awards.  The expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and 
conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Any disallowed claims 
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the applicable fund.  KCTCS has had no disallowed claims in the 
past.  In the opinion of management, such potential disallowed claims, if any, would not have a material adverse effect 
on the overall financial position of KCTCS at June 30, 2021. 

KTRS KERS KCTCS Total

Net OPEB liability 12,618,000$  34,040,156$  -$                  46,658,156$   

Net OPEB (asset) -$                 -$                 (32,475,349)$  (32,475,349)$  

Deferred outflows 2,029,992$    7,955,717$    11,077,401$   21,063,110$   

Deferred inflows 8,913,000$    6,688,045$    22,535,933$   38,136,978$   

OPEB (income) expense recognized (1,541,403)$   232,219$      (9,190,371)$    (10,499,555)$  

KTRS KERS KCTCS Total

Net OPEB liability 15,699,000$  30,368,762$  -$                  46,067,762$   

Net OPEB (asset) -$                 -$                 (52,524,800)$  (52,524,800)$  

Deferred outflows 1,479,589$    6,086,274$    -$                  7,565,863$     

Deferred inflows 6,823,000$    8,257,777$    40,698,354$   55,779,131$   

OPEB (income) expense recognized (944,091)$     (289,210)$     (26,340,313)$  (27,573,614)$  

2021

2020
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

KCTCS' proportionate share of net pension liability 49,358$     50,127$     54,584$     113,107$   251,694$   219,423$   209,139$   

State's proportionate share of collective net 

pension liability 60,113       63,627      56,662      127,090     34,486      33,391      36,216      

109,472$   113,754$   111,246$   240,197$   286,180$   252,814$   245,355$   

KCTCS' proportion of net pension liability 0.33% 0.35% 0.40% 0.40% 0.81% 0.90% 0.97%

KCTCS' covered payroll 28,942$     30,701$     34,408$     35,898$     39,577$     43,116$     46,018$     

KCTCS' proportionate share of net pension liability 

   as a percentage of its covered payroll 170.54% 163.27% 158.64% 315.08% 635.96% 508.91% 454.47%

Plan fiduciary net position 

   as a percentage of total pension liability 58.27% 58.10% 59.30% 39.83% 35.22% 42.49% 45.59%

Notes:   

This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 3,364$       3,730$      4,046$      4,663$      5,814$      6,383$      6,668$      

Contributions in relation to the contractually 

   required contribution 3,364$       3,730$      4,046$      4,663$      5,814$      6,383$      6,668$      

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             

KCTCS covered payroll 25,937$     28,942$     30,701$     34,408$     35,898$     39,577$     43,116$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 12.97% 12.89% 13.18% 13.55% 16.20% 16.13% 15.47%

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System

(in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS Pension Contribution

Kentucky Teacher's Retirement Plan

(in thousands)

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future 

fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future 

fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Notes:

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2021, the municipal bond index rate decreased from 3.50% to 2.19%.  For fiscal year 2020, the assumed municipal bond 

index rate decreased from 3.89% to 3.50%.  For fiscal year 2019, the KTRS plan discount rate increased from 4.49% to 7.50%.  For fiscal year 2018, the KTRS plan 

discount rate increased from 4.20 percent to 4.49 percent.  For fiscal year 2017, the KTRS plan discount rate decreased from 4.88 percent to 4.20 percent.  For 

fiscal year 2016, there was a decrease in the assumed investment rate of return from 7.75 percent to 7.50 percent; a decrease in the assumed rate of inflation from 

3.50 percent to 3.25 percent; a decrease in the assumed rate of wage inflation from 1.00 percent to 0.75 percent and a decrease in the payroll growth assumption 

from 4.50 percent to 4.00 percent.
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

KCTCS' proportionate share of net pension liability 189,911$   192,946$   195,996$   201,115$   193,547$   186,537$   174,855$   

KCTCS' proportion of net pension liability 1.34% 1.37% 1.44% 1.50% 1.70% 1.86% 1.95%

KCTCS' covered payroll 19,148$     20,008$     22,028$     23,258$     27,453$     30,224$     32,208$     

KCTCS' proportionate share of net pension liability 

   as a percentage of its covered payroll 991.81% 964.34% 889.76% 864.71% 705.01% 617.18% 542.89%

Plan fiduciary net position

   as a percentage of total pension liability 14.01% 13.66% 12.84% 13.30% 14.80% 18.83% 22.32%

Notes:   

This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 7,234$      7,855$      8,205$      9,032$      9,353$      10,544$     11,722$     

Contributions in relation to the contractually 

   required contribution 7,234$      7,855$      8,205$      9,032$      9,353$      10,544$     11,722$     

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             

KCTCS covered payroll 17,639$     19,148$     20,008$     22,028$     23,258$     27,453$     30,224$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 41.01% 41.02% 41.01% 41.00% 40.21% 38.41% 38.78%

Notes:   

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2021, Senate Bill 249 changed the funding period for the amortization of the unfunded liability to 30 years as of June 30, 

2019. Gains and losses incurred in future years will be amortized over separate 20-year amortization bases. This change did not impact the calculation of Total 

Pension Liability and only impacts the calculation of the contribution rates payable starting July 1, 2020. House Bill 271 passed during the 2020 Legislative Session 

and removed provisions that reduce the monthly payment to a surviving spouse of a member whose death was due to a duty-related injury upon remarriage of the 

spouse. It also increased benefits for a very small number of beneficiaries. This did not have a material (or measurable) impact on the liability of the plans and 

therefore, we did not make any adjustment to the Total Pension Liability to reflect this legislation. There were no other material plan provision changes. For fiscal 

year 2020, there was an increase to the salary increase assumptions for individual members and the base retiree mortality tables were replaced with a KERS-

specific mortality table developed using the actual mortality experience of non-disabled retirees in KERS.  Mortality tables for disabled retirees and active members 

were updated with Public Retirement Mortality tables.  Termination rates and rates of disability incidence were increased.  Retirement rates were decreased slightly 

for members with a participation date prior to July 1, 2003.  For members with a participation date on or after July 1, 2003, retirement rates were set equal to 80% of 

the retirement rates applicable for the pre July 1, 2003 participants for ages below 65. There were no changes for fiscal year 2019.  For fiscal year 2018, the KERS 

plan discount rate and assumed investment rate of return decreased from 6.75 percent to 5.25 percent, the assumed rate of inflation decreased from 3.25 percent 

to 2.30 percent which also resulted in a 0.95% decrease in the salary increase assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption decreased from 

4.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  For fiscal year 2017, the KERS plan discount rate and assumed investment rate of return decreased from 7.50 percent to 6.75 

percent, the assumed rate of inflation decreased from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent, the assumed rate of wage inflation decreased from 1.00 percent to 0.75 percent, 

the payroll growth assumption decreased from 4.50 percent to 4.00 percent.  The assumed rates of retirement, withdrawal and disability were updated to more 

accurately reflect experience. 

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future 

fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future 

fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Kentucky Employees Retirement System

(in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS' Pension Contribution

Kentucky Employees Retirement Plan

(in thousands)

Changes in benefit terms:  During the 2018 legislative session, House Bill 185 was enacted, which updated the benefit provisions for active members who die in the 

line of duty. Benefits paid to the spouses of deceased members have been increased from 25% of the member’s final rate of pay to 75% of the member’s average 

pay. If the member does not have a surviving spouse, benefits paid to surviving dependent children have been increased from 10% of the member’s final pay rate to 

50% of average pay for one child, 65% of average pay for two children, or 75% of average pay for three children. The Total Pension Liability as of June 30, 2018 is 

determined using these updated benefit provisions.
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2021 2020 2019 2018

KCTCS' proportion of net OPEB liability 0.49% 0.53% 0.59% 0.64%

KCTCS' proportionate share of net OPEB liability 12,319$     15,410$     20,297$     22,671$     

State's proportionate share of net OPEB liability 5,431 6,873 9,933 10,281

17,750$     22,283$     30,230$     32,952$     

KCTCS' covered payroll 28,942$     30,701$     34,408$     35,898$     

KCTCS' proportionate share of net OPEB liability

   as a percentage of its covered payroll 42.56% 50.19% 58.99% 63.15%

Plan fiduciary net position 

   as a percentage of total OPEB liability 39.05% 32.58% 25.50% 21.18%

Notes:   

This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

2021 2020 2019 2018

Contractually required contribution 820$         923$         913$         908$         

Contributions in relation to the contractually 

   required contribution 820$         923$         913$         908$         

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              -$             -$             -$             

KCTCS covered payroll 25,937$     28,942$     30,701$     34,408$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 3.16% 3.19% 2.97% 2.64%

Notes:   

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability

Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Medical Insurance Plan

(in thousands)

Changes of benefit terms:  There were no changes for fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019.  For fiscal year 2018, the eligibility for non-single 

subsidies (NSS) for the KEHP-participating members who retired prior to July 1, 2010 was restored, but the state will only finance, via its 

KEHP "Shared Responsibility" contributions, the costs of the NSS related to those KEHP-participating members who retired on or after 

July 1, 2010.

(in thousands)

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added 

to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added 

to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Schedule of KCTCS' OPEB Contribution

Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Medical Insurance Plan

Changes in assumptions: For fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the healthcare cost trend rate for Pre-65 decreased from 7.50 percent for 

fiscal year 2020 to 7.25 percent for fiscal year 2021 and Post-65 decreased from 5.50 percent for fiscal year 2020 to 5.25 percent for fiscal 

year 2021.  Medicare Part B premiums increased to 6.49 percent for fiscal year 2021 from 2.63 percent for fiscal year 2020.  The 

municipal bond index rate decreased from 3.50 percent to 2.19 percent. For fiscal year 2020, the healthcare cost trend rate drecreased 

from 7.75% and 5.75% to 7.50% and 5.50% for Pre-65 and Post 65, respectively. Medicare Part B premiums increased to 2.63% from 

0.00%.  The municipal bond index rate decreased from 3.89% to 3.50%.  For fiscal year 2019, healthcare cost trend rates were decreased 

to 0.00% from 1.02% for Medicare Part B Premiums.  The municipal bond index rate increased from 3.56% to 3.89%.
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2021 2020 2019 2018

KCTCS' proportion of net OPEB liability 0.86% 0.93% 1.05% 1.11%

KCTCS' proportionate share of net OPEB liability 299$          289$         297$         243$         

KCTCS' covered payroll 28,942$     30,701$     34,408$     35,898$     

KCTCS' proportionate share of net OPEB liability

   as a percentage of its covered payroll 1.03% 0.94% 0.86% 0.68%

Plan fiduciary net position

   as a percentage of total OPEB liability 71.57% 73.40% 75.00% 79.99%

Notes:   

This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

2021 2020 2019 2018

Contractually required contribution 15$           20$           12$           5$             

Contributions in relation to the contractually 

   required contribution 15$           20$           12$           5$             

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              -$              -$              -$              

KCTCS covered payroll 25,937$     28,942$     30,701$     34,408$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.06% 0.07% 0.04% 0.01%

Notes:   

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added to this 

schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

(in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability

Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Life Insurance Plan

(in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS' OPEB Contribution

Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Life Insurance Plan

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added to this 

schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2021, the municipal bond index rate decreased from 3.50% to 2.19%.  For fiscal year 2020, the 

municipal bond index rate decreased from 3.89% to 3.50%. For fiscal year 2019, the municipal bond index rate increased from 3.56% to 3.89%.   

For fiscal year 2019, the municipal bond index rate increased from 3.56% to 3.89%.  The amortization period was changed from 27 years to 30 

years and the inflation rate was changed from 3.00% to 3.50%.
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2021 2020 2019 2018

KCTCS' proportion of net OPEB liability 1.34% 1.37% 1.44% 1.50%

KCTCS' proportionate share of net OPEB liability 34,040$     30,369$     34,129$     38,094$     

KCTCS' covered payroll 19,148$     20,008$     22,028$     23,258$     

KCTCS' proportionate share of net OPEB liability

   as a percentage of its covered payroll 177.77% 151.78% 154.93% 163.79%

Plan fiduciary net position 

   as a percentage of total OPEB liability 29.47% 30.92% 27.32% 24.40%

Notes:   

This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

2021 2020 2019 2018

Contractually required contribution 1,482$      1,609$      1,989$      1,853$      

Contributions in relation to the contractually 

   required contribution 1,482$      1,609$      1,989$      1,853$      

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$             -$             -$             -$             

KCTCS covered payroll 17,639$     19,148$     20,008$     22,028$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 8.40% 8.40% 9.94% 8.41%

Notes:   

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability

Kentucky Employees Retirement System

(in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS' OPEB Contribution

Kentucky Employees Retirement System

(in thousands)

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2021, the assumed increase in future health care costs was reviewed during the June 30, 

2019 valuation process and was updated to better reflect more current expectations relating to anticipated future increase in the 

medical costs. The June 30, 2020 actuarial information reflects the anticipated savings from the repeal of the “Cadillac Tax” and 

“Health Insurer Fee”, which occurred in December of 2019. The assumed load on pre-Medicare premiums to reflect the cost of the 

Cadillac Tax was removed and the Medicare premiums were reduced by 11 percent to reflect the repeal of the Health Insurer Fee.  

Senate Bill 249 changed the funding period for the amortization of the unfunded liability to 30 years as of June 30, 2019. Gains and 

losses incurred in future years will be amortized over separate 20-year amortization bases. This change did not impact the calculation 

of Total OPEB Liability and only impacts the calculation of the contribution rates payable starting July 1, 2020. For fiscal year 2020, 

the discount rate was changed from 5.86 percent to 5.73 percent.  In addition, the KERS Board of Trustees adopted new actuarial 

assumptions based on an actuarial experience study for the period ending June 30, 2018.  Key assumption changes include replacing 

the base retiree mortality tables with a KERS-specific mortality table developed using the actual mortality experience of non-disabled 

retirees in KERS.  Mortality tables for disabled retirees and active members were updated with Public Retirement Mortality tables.  In 

addition, termination rates and rates of disability incidence were increased.  Retirement rates were decreased slightly for members 

with a participation date prior to July 1, 2003.  For members with a participation date on or after July 1, 2003, retirement rates were set 

equal to 80% of the retirement rates applicable for the pre July 1, 2003 participants for ages below 65.For fiscal year 2019, the 

discount rate was changed from 5.83 percent to 5.86 percent.  For fiscal year 2018, the assumed investment rate of return was 

changed from 7.50 percent to 6.25 percent.  The inflation assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 2.30 percent, which also 

resulted in a 0.95 percent decrease in the salary assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption was changed from 

4.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  The discount rate was changed from 6.90 percent to 5.83 percent.

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be 

added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be 

added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.
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2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 2,080$      2,877$      2,902$          4,839$          

Interest 10,682      12,131      11,324          11,366          

Changes of benefit terms 6,786        -               -                   -                   

Differences between expected and actual experience (607)          (4,045)       -                   (39,171)         

Changes of assumptions 3,312        (26,946)     (2,046)           (1,929)           

Contributions - employee -               -               589              -                   

Benefit payments (4,001)       (3,833)       (3,854)           (3,357)           

Net change in total OPEB liability 18,252$     (19,816)$    8,915$          (28,252)$       

Total OPEB liability - beginning 152,496     172,312     163,397        191,649        

Total OPEB liability - ending 170,748$   152,496$   172,312$      163,397$      

Plan fiduciary net position

Net investment income 2,303$      12,604$     14,030$        18,685$        

Benefit payments (4,001)       (3,833)       (3,854)           (3,357)           

Administrative expense (99)            (44)            -                   (144)             

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (1,797)$     8,727$      10,176$        15,184$        

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 205,020     196,293     186,117        170,933        

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 203,223$   205,020$   196,293$      186,117$      

Net OPEB asset (32,475)$    (52,524)$    (23,981)$       (22,720)$       

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 119.02% 134.44% 113.92% 113.90%

Covered-employee payroll 70,956$     78,638$     89,871$        95,490$        

Net OPEB asset as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 45.77% 66.79% 26.68% 23.79%

Notes:   

This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

For fiscal year 2018, the discount rate was changed from 6% to 7%.  The salary increase rate was set at 3%.  Health Care and 

Contribution trend rates were updated from 7% in fiscal 2016 and an ultimate rate of 4% in fiscal 2036 to an initial rate of 7.50%, 7% 

and 6% in fiscal 2018 for KCTCS, UK Pre-65, UK Post-65,respectively, and an ultimate rate of 4.50% in fiscal 2038 for all plans.  The 

lapse rate for current and future retirees and their spouses was updated from 10% to 3%.  The participation rate was updated from 95% 

to 90%.  Retirees electing spousal coverage was updated from 30% to 15%.  75% of future KCTCS retirees who have waived coverage 

are assumed to stay without coverage until age 65 and to elect coverage at age 65.  This was updated from 100%.  The impact of the 

Affordable Care Act excise tax on high-cost healthcare plans was estimated and updated.  KCTCS health per capita costs were updated 

based on updated premium and census data.  Mortality for health employees was updated from RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality 

Table for Males and Females Projected Generationally with scale MP-2014 to RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and 

Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016. Mortality for disabled employees was updated from RP-

2014 Disabled Mortality Table for Males and Females Projected Generationally with scale MP-2014 to RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table 

for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016.

 For fiscal year 2019, healthcare trend rates were updated from 7.5% to 7.35% for KCTCS, from 7% to 6.88% for UK Pre-65 and from 

6% to 5.93% for UK Post-65.  Mortality rates for healthy employees were updated from RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for 

Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016 to RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table 

for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2017.  Mortality rates for disabled employees 

were updated from RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale 

MP-2016 to RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-

2017.  

These are 10-year schedules, however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added 

to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios

Kentucky Community and Technical College System

(in thousands)

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2021, in most cases, required retiree contributions for single only coverage was reduced by 

approximately 50.0 percent. Coverage for additional dependents was reduced by the same dollar amount as the single only coverage. 

Medical trend for UK Post-65 was updated to reflect the repeal of the health care fee. The mortality improvement scale was updated from 

MP-2018 to MP-2019. Expected return on assets was updated from 7.0 percent to 6.5 percent. The excise tax on high-cost health 

coverage is no longer valued. For fiscal year 2020, healthcare trend rates were decreased for KCTCS Post-65 from 7.35% to 7.01% and 

increased for UK Post-65 from 5.93% to 31.25%. Expected medical claims and health care cost aging were updated to better reflect 

expected experience of the plan.  The base mortality table for healthy employees was updated from 2006 base rates using the RP-2014 

Combined Healthy Mortality Table to PUB-2010 Mortality Tables for “Teachers” and “General” Employees.  The base mortality table for 

disabled retirees was updated from 2006 base rates from the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table for “Non-Safety” Employees.  

The mortality improvement scale was updated from MP-2017 to MP-2018.  Post-65 retirees who waived coverage are no longer assumed 

to later elect coverage.
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Direct Grants - 
Student Financial Aid Cluster

Federal Supplmental Educational   84.007
   Opportunity Grant Program 4,496,799$     
Federal Work Study Program 84.033 1,276,544       
Pell Grant Program 84.063 116,510,873   
Direct Loan Program 84.268 66,002,840     

188,287,056   

TRIO Cluster
Student Support Services 84.042 3,491,335       
Educational Talent Search 84.044 769,814          
Upward Bound 84.047 1,840,202       
Educational Opportunity Center 84.066 232,307          
       Total TRIO Cluster 6,333,658       

Title III Grant 84.031 3,456,476       

Project BEAM (HEP) 84.141 448,483          

Child Care Access Means Parents in School (CCAMPIS) 84.335 87,830           

COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund - Higher Education
   Emergency Relief Fund  (HEERF)
Student Aid Portion 84.425E 20,074,862     
Institutional Portion 84.425F 92,657,645     
Strengthening Institutions Program (SIP) 84.425M 2,826,391       
     Total HEERF 115,558,898   

Pass-Through Grants -
Kentucky Council for Post Secondary Education

COVID-19 - Governor's Emergency Education Relief (GEER) 84.425C SC 415 2000002009 2,421,978       
COVID-19 - Governor's Emergency Education Relief (Mental Health) 84.425C SC 415 2000002009 25,460           
COVID-19 - Governor's Emergency Education Relief (Summer Bridge) 84.425C SC 415 2000002009 46,125           
      Total GEER 2,493,563       

      Total Education Stabilization Fund 118,052,461   

Kentucky Adult Education
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Floyd 84.002 SC 531 2000000023 3,304             
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Johnson 84.002 SC 531 2000000023 2,560             
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Magoffin 84.002 SC 531 2000000023 803                
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Pike 84.002 SC 531 2000000023 5,335             
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Anderson 84.002 SC 531 2000000317 1,331             
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Clark 84.002 SC 531 2000000317 3,356             
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Fayette 84.002 SC 531 2000000317 16,570           
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Scott 84.002 SC 531 2000000317 1,997             
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Grayson 84.002 SC 531 2000000405 5,186             
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Meade 84.002 SC 531 2000000405 724                
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Nelson 84.002 SC 531 2000000405 235                
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Washington 84.002 SC 531 2000000405 1,818             
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Boone 84.002 SC 531 2000000408 6,065             
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Grant 84.002 SC 531 2000000408 2,817             
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Kenton 84.002 SC 531 2000000408 11,842           
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Owen 84.002 SC 531 2000000408 171                
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Pendleton 84.002 SC 531 2000000408 171                
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Breathitt 84.002 SC 531 2000000409 2,055             
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Knott 84.002 SC 531 2000000409 1,346             
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Leslie 84.002 SC 531 2000000409 2,425             
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Owsley 84.002 SC 531 2000000409 1,561             
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (Continued)
Pass-Through Grants -

ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Perry 84.002 SC 531 2000000409 4,275$           
ABE-Learning Center / Henderson 84.002 SC 531 2000000411 3,538             
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Caldwell 84.002 SC 531 2000000420 402                
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Christian 84.002 SC 531 2000000420 6,492             
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Todd 84.002 SC 531 2000000420 380                
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Trigg 84.002 SC 531 2000000420 487                
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Bullitt 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 5,058             
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Caroll 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 2,703             
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Gallatin 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 1,073             
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Henry 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 225                
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Oldham 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 5,250             
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Shelby 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 6,631             
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Spencer 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 591                
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Trimble 84.002 SC 531 2000000424 255                
ABE-Learning Center / Madisonville - Hopkins 84.002 SC 531 2000000432 4,306             
ABE-Learning Center / Madisonville - Muhlenberg 84.002 SC 531 2000000432 3,304             
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Bracken 84.002 SC 531 2000000433 410                
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Fleming 84.002 SC 531 2000000433 867                
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Harrison 84.002 SC 531 2000000433 1,816             
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Lewis 84.002 SC 531 2000000433 3,386             
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Mason 84.002 SC 531 2000000433 3,265             
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Nicholas 84.002 SC 531 2000000433 1,695             
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Robertson 84.002 SC 531 2000000433 36                  
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - Daviess 84.002 SC 531 2000000458 9,038             
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - Hancock 84.002 SC 531 2000000458 102                
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - McLean 84.002 SC 531 2000000458 321                
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - Ohio 84.002 SC 531 2000000458 671                
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Casey 84.002 SC 531 2000000435 2,105             
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - McCreary 84.002 SC 531 2000000435 1,844             
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Pulaski 84.002 SC 531 2000000435 3,559             
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Russell 84.002 SC 531 2000000435 3,594             
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Wayne 84.002 SC 531 2000000435 2,895             
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Barren 84.002 SC 531 2000000438 3,766             
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Metcalfe 84.002 SC 531 2000000438 496                
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Simpson 84.002 SC 531 2000000438 1,931             
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Warren 84.002 SC 531 2000000438 9,799             
ABE-Learning Center / West KY - Carlisle 84.002 SC 531 2000000441 85                  
ABE-Learning Center / West KY - Graves 84.002 SC 531 2000000441 3,747             
ABE-Learning Center / West KY - McCracken 84.002 SC 531 2000000441 4,393             
ABE-Learning Center / Southeast - Bell 84.002 SC 531 2000000439 4,141             
ABE-Learning Center / Southeast - Harlan 84.002 SC 531 2000000439 4,587             
ABE-Learning Center / Southeast - Letcher 84.002 SC 531 2000000439 765                
KYSU / Fayette Co / EL Civics 84.002 SC 531 2000000463 5,370             
KYSU / Warren Co / EL Civics 84.002 SC 531 2000000462 2,283             
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Floyd 84.002 SC 531 2000001679 120,669         
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Johnson 84.002 SC 531 2000001679 77,636           
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Magoffin 84.002 SC 531 2000001679 37,408           
ABE-Learning Center / Big Sandy - Pike 84.002 SC 531 2000001679 171,725         
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Anderson 84.002 SC 531 2000001956 40,933           
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Clark 84.002 SC 531 2000001956 58,481           
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Fayette 84.002 SC 531 2000001956 413,631         
ABE-Learning Center / Bluegrass - Scott 84.002 SC 531 2000001956 57,152           
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Grayson 84.002 SC 531 2000001501 118,676         
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Meade 84.002 SC 531 2000001501 37,612           
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Nelson 84.002 SC 531 2000001501 33,448           
ABE-Learning Center / Elizabethtown - Washington 84.002 SC 531 2000001501 13,616           
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Boone 84.002 SC 531 2000001502 124,911         
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Grant 84.002 SC 531 2000001502 61,978           
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Kenton 84.002 SC 531 2000001502 240,398         
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Owen 84.002 SC 531 2000001502 4,575             
ABE-Learning Center / Gateway - Pendleton 84.002 SC 531 2000001502 4,553             
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Breathitt 84.002 SC 531 2000001503 50,784           
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Knott 84.002 SC 531 2000001503 50,586           
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Leslie 84.002 SC 531 2000001503 46,121           
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Owsley 84.002 SC 531 2000001503 19,844           
ABE-Learning Center / Hazard - Perry 84.002 SC 531 2000001503 89,232           
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (Continued)
Pass-Through Grants -

ABE-Learning Center / Henderson 84.002 SC 531 2000001505 99,190$         
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Caldwell 84.002 SC 531 2000001507 9,405             
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Christian 84.002 SC 531 2000001507 147,226         
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Todd 84.002 SC 531 2000001507 9,815             
ABE-Learning Center / Hopkinsville - Trigg 84.002 SC 531 2000001507 11,151           
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Bullitt 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 117,654         
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Caroll 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 53,518           
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Gallatin 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 21,854           
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Henry 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 9,701             
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Oldham 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 107,710         
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Shelby 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 115,593         
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Spencer 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 14,366           
ABE-Learning Center / Jefferson - Trimble 84.002 SC 531 2000001508 5,917             
ABE-Learning Center / Madisonville - Hopkins 84.002 SC 531 2000001512 103,325         
ABE-Learning Center / Madisonville - Muhlenberg 84.002 SC 531 2000001512 103,164         
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Bracken 84.002 SC 531 2000001513 29,040           
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Fleming 84.002 SC 531 2000001513 21,408           
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Harrison 84.002 SC 531 2000001513 30,448           
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Lewis 84.002 SC 531 2000001513 76,558           
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Mason 84.002 SC 531 2000001513 74,054           
ABE-Learning Center / Maysville - Nicholas 84.002 SC 531 2000001513 26,844           
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - Daviess 84.002 SC 531 2000001522 235,802         
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - Hancock 84.002 SC 531 2000001522 3,165             
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - McLean 84.002 SC 531 2000001522 5,737             
ABE-Learning Center / Owensboro - Ohio 84.002 SC 531 2000001522 6,771             
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Casey 84.002 SC 531 2000001515 89,575           
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - McCreary 84.002 SC 531 2000001515 79,202           
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Pulaski 84.002 SC 531 2000001515 141,945         
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Russell 84.002 SC 531 2000001515 83,041           
ABE-Learning Center / Somerset - Wayne 84.002 SC 531 2000001515 94,364           
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Barren 84.002 SC 531 2000001516 95,321           
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Metcalfe 84.002 SC 531 2000001516 14,651           
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Simpson 84.002 SC 531 2000001516 54,863           
ABE-Learning Center / Southcentral KY - Warren 84.002 SC 531 2000001516 233,486         
ABE-Learning Center / West KY - Carlisle 84.002 SC 531 2000001518 4,413             
ABE-Learning Center / West KY - Graves 84.002 SC 531 2000001518 94,161           
ABE-Learning Center / West KY - McCracken 84.002 SC 531 2000001518 140,179         
ABE-Learning Center / Southeast - Bell 84.002 SC 531 2000001517 122,246         
ABE-Learning Center / Southeast - Harlan 84.002 SC 531 2000001517 122,677         
ABE-Learning Center / Southeast - Letcher 84.002 SC 531 2000001517 32,891           
KYSU / Warren Co / EL Civics 84.002 SC 531 2000001953 53,022           
KYSU / Fayette Co / EL Civics 84.002 SC 531 2000001956 113,665         

5,076,696       

Kentucky Department of Education
Northern Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1900004759 196,840         
Western Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1900004761 88,597           
Western Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 2000003373 245,638         
Northern Regional Migrant Education 84.011 S011A20017 309,074         

840,149         

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Consortium for Language and International Major's Experiences 84.016 3200003672-21 2,363             

Kentucky Office of Career and Technical Education
Carl D. Perkins FY20 Post Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 1900004796 246,404         
Carl D. Perkins FY20 Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 1900004796 3,114             
Carl D. Perkins FY20 Post Secondary C/F 84.048 PON2 540 1900004796 41,311           
Carl D. Perkins FY20 Curriculum 84.048 PON2 540 1900004232 2,688             
Carl D. Perkins FY20 Prof Development 84.048 PON2 540 1900004229 64,581           
Carl D. Perkins FY20 Leadership 84.048 PON2 540 1900004229 1,636             
Carl D. Perkins FY20 Leadership C/F 84.048 PON2 540 1900004232 28,691           
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Post Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 2000004206 6,232,615       



KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 

  
 Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Assistance Listing  Pass-Through Entity  Federal 
 Program Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures 
 

 
See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards. 

 
71 

 
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (Continued)

Pass-Through Grants -
Kentucky Office of Career and Technical Education (Continued)

Carl D. Perkins FY21 Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 2000004206 225,270$        
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Post Secondary C/F 84.048 PON2 540 2000004206 209,197         
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Secondary C/F 84.048 PON2 540 2000004206 16,642           
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Assessment 84.048 PON2 540 2000003183 6,250             
Carl D. Perkins FY21 HOSA 84.048 PON2 540 2000003180 235                
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Prof Development 84.048 PON2 540 2000003183 277,712         
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Leadership 84.048 PON2 540 2000003180 41,466           
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Tech Support 84.048 PON2 540 2000003180 2,977             
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Leadership C/F FY 19-20 84.048 PON2 540 2100000537 153,402         
Carl D. Perkins FY21 Leadership C/F FY 18-19 84.048 PON2 540 2100000537 128,486         

7,682,677       

Kentucky Education and Workforce Development Cabinet
KY STEM Apprenticeship Porgram 84.051 PON2 531 1900004435 5,297             
K-TECH Project - Bluegrass 84.051 PON2 530 2000001040 12,177           
K-TECH Project - Big Sandy 84.051 PON2 531 2000004479 54,997           
P-TECH / K-TECH Pilot - Hazard 84.051 PON2 540 2100000083 166,200         
K-TECH Project - Bluegrass 84.051 PON2 531 2100000002 67,780           

306,451         

Kentucky Office of the Blind
Pre-Employment Transistion Services FY20 84.126 PON2 531 1900004415 93,360           
Pre-Employment Transistion Services FY21 84.126 PON2 531 2000002008 1,702,425       

1,795,785       

Berea College
GEAR UP - Post Secondary Navigator 84.215 MOA 13,108           

American Institutes for Research
Reducing Summer Melt Text Messaging Effectiveness 84.305 0482500007 5,495             

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 332,388,688   

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER
Direct Grants - 

U.S. National Science Foundation
NSF High School Pipeline 47.076 (416)               
NSF Regional Partnership 47.076 1,455             
NSF GeoTech Center of Excellence 47.076 549,793         
NSF GeoTech Center of Excellence - Amend 001 47.076 47,393           
NSF GeoTech Center of Excellence - Amend 002 47.076 947                
NSF GeoTech Center of Excellence - Amend 003 47.076 4,665             
NSF GeoTech Center of Excellence - Amend 005 47.076 76,251           
NSF Female Incumbent Workers 47.076 118,337         
NSF Additive Manufacturing 47.076 57,376           
NSF Scholarships and Support 47.076 16,618           

872,419         
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER (Continued)
Pass-Through Grants -

American Association of Community Colleges
Mentor Links 47.076 N/A 6,434$           
Appalachian Cybersecurity 47.076 N/A 4,758             

11,192           

Florence-Darlington Technical College
MentorConnect Mapping 47.076 MOA 2,302             

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
LSAMP KY-WV Mid Level Alliance 47.076 3200002015-19-044 3,489             
LSAMP KY-WV Mid Level Alliance 47.076 3200002015-19-045 6,799             

10,288           

University of Kentucky EPSCoR
UK EPSCoR: RII Track-1 47.083 3200002692-20-025 177,882          

TOTAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER 1,074,083       

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Grants - 

EMSC Partnership Grants 93.127 126,630          

Pass-Through Grants -
Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services
   Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster

Ready to Work FY20 93.558 SC 736 1900001579 370,115          
Ready to Work FY21 93.558 SC 736 2000001910 7,519,718       
   Total TANF Cluster 7,889,833       

Catholic Charities Foundation
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 278-108160-2020 15,381           
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 278-107016-2020 23,789           
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 277-107016-2021 24,639           
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 277-108160-2021 51,233           
Targeted Assistance for Refugees 93.566 278-108160-2020 6,692             

121,734          

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Model State Supported AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800005050 26,654           
Southeast KY AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800005061 34,711           
Model State Supported AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800005614 104,660          
Southeast KY AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800005644 89,847           
COVID-19 - Supplement Model State Supported AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800005669 7,216             
COVID-19 - Supplement Southeast KY AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800005741 7,222             
Kentucky CARES Program 93.241 PO# 7800005500 70,707           
UK Nursing Grant 93.359 PO# 7800004902 2,736             
UK Nursing Grant 93.359 PO# 7800005287 71,364           
STARS Quality Child Care FY20 93.596 N/A 1,908             
STARS Quality Child Care FY21 93.596 N/A 118,000          

535,025          

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 8,673,222       
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Direct Grants - 

USDA Additive Manufacturing 10.351 16,326$         
USDA Medical Assistants Simulation 10.351 10,705           
USDA SKERT Recovery Works 10.351 630                
USDA Technology Infrastructure Upgrade 10.351 37,900           
USDA HCTC Advanced Maunfacturing 10.351 37,710           
USDA SKERT Community Facilities Technical Assistance 10.766 24,500           
USDA Increasing STEM Access 10.855 21,120           
USDA DHCS Healthcare Simulator Experience 10.874 10,342           
USDA DHCA Respiratory Therapy Degree 10.874 63,755           
USDA DHCS Extended Healthcare 10.874 65,712           

288,700         

Pass-Through Grants -
Delta Regional Authority

Delta Workforce LPN 10.773 BW-0400 18,950           

Harlan County Community Foundation
Belk Project Phase II 10.351 N/A 6,763             

Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services
SNAP Employment & Training 2020 10.561 SC 736 1800004117 2,258             
SNAP Employment & Training 2021 10.561 SC 736 2000001253 12,828           
SNAP Employment & Training 2021 10.561 SC 736 2000001253 26,669           
SNAP Employment & Training 2021 10.561 SC 736 2000001253 14,043           
SNAP Employment & Training 2021 10.561 SC 736 2000001253 58,512           

114,310         

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 428,723         

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION
Direct Grants - 

CCAMC Training Program 11.307 845,137         

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION 845,137         

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Louisville Reseach Foundation
Healthcare Cybersecurity Pathway 12.905 ULRF_20-1034-02 95,181           

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 95,181           

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Division of Abandoned Mine Land
Leslie County Utility Training 15.252 SC 128 2000000386 372,180         

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 372,180         

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Grants - 

DOJ Violence Intervention & Prevention 16.525 94,273           

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 94,273           
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Direct Grants - 

DOL Apprenticeships: Closing the GAP 17.268 4,150$     
DOL Preparing West KY to Support I69 17.280 239,475   
DOL Workforce Opportuniy for Rural Communities / West KY 17.280 4,556    
DOL Job Corps Scholars 17.285 56,094  

304,275   

Pass-Through Grants -
American Association of Community Colleges

AACC Apprenticeship 17.285 N/A 112,135   

Kentucky Department of Labor
KY DOL Apprenticeship 17.285 PON2 531 1900003449 22,133  

WIB - Green River ADD
GO Females 17.260 WR-002 96,722  

Kentucky Science and Technology Center
Veterans Accelerated Learning for Licensed Occupations 17.207 N/A 172,827   

WIOA Cluster
WIB - Buffalo Trace ADD

Workforce Development 17.259 FY20W-7193 (968)      

Kentucky Education and Workforce Development Cabinet
WIOA - Mobility Nursing 17.258 FPA111-44-00 4,284    

WIB - Lincoln Trail ADD
Greater Knox Coding Academy 17.258 LTADD-SWR-18-19-008 11,166  

WIB - West Kentucky ADD
WIOA Workforce Connections 17.259 A-200440 3,636    
WIOA Youth Program 17.259 A-200422 2,744    
WIOA Project LAUNCH 17.259 A-200523 5,082    
WIOA Youth Program 17.259 A-210422 71,292  
WIOA Workforce Connections 17.259 A-210440 172,009   
WIOA Project LAUNCH 17.259 A-210523 137,667   
   Total WIOA Cluster 406,912   

WIB - West Kentucky ADD
WIOA Ft Campbell Strong Workforce 17.277 JT190416 63,154  

University of Louisville Research Foundation 
Modern Apprenticeship Pathways to Success - Elizabethtown 17.268 ULRF 20-0301-03 59,087  
Modern Apprenticeship Pathways to Success - Jefferson 17.268 ULRF 20-0301-01 105,052   
Modern Apprenticeship Pathways to Success - Gateway 17.268 ULRF 20-0301-05 14,863  

179,002   

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 1,357,160    

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet
KY Emergency Medical Servces Information System - 12th Year 20.616 SC 625 2100000509 93,440  

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 93,440  

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Office of State Budget Director
COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 N/A 8,069,800    

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 8,069,800    
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APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION
Direct Grants - 

Selling to the World Initiative 23.001 (183)$             
Industrial Maintenance Technology and Welding 23.001 115,766         
EKCCT Project 23.002 760,065         
KY-WV Regional Drone Project 23.002 247,184         
Southeast KY Revitalization 23.002 41,421           
Intergenerational Training Center 23.002 1,500,000       
Creative Capital Investment 23.002 6,759             
HCTC Welding Program 23.002 16,198           
Commercial Driver's License Expansion 23.002 2,451             
Advanced Welding Work Initiative 23.011 75,423           

2,765,084       

East Tennessee State University
Appalachian Teaching Prject 23.011 N/A 72                  

North Alabama Center for Educational Excellene
EntreEd ESTEAM Project - Big Sandy 23.002 SubAgreement 6,500             
EntreEd ESTEAM Project - Southeast 23.002 SubAgreement 3,612             
EntreEd ESTEAM Project - Hazard 23.002 SubAgreement 1,938             

12,050           

TOTAL APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION 2,777,206       

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
NASA Rover Team 2019 - Owensboro 43.008 3210000183-19-158 5,714             
NASA Kentucky SPACE Grant 43.008 3200003095-21-316 639                

6,353             

TOTAL NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION 6,353             

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS
Direct Grants - 

Our Town - Paducah School of Art and Design 45.024 (16,043)          

TOTAL NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS (16,043)          

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Humanities Council
One Book Read 45.129 SO-263390-19 1,500             

TOTAL NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES 1,500             

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Southeast KY Small Business Development Center 59.037 PO# 7800005161 32,927           

TOTAL U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 32,927           
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DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

Direct Grants - 
Veterans Approving Agency - Admin FY20 64.124 998$              
Veterans Approving Agency - Operating FY20 64.124 66,672           
Veterans Approving Agency - Admin FY21 64.124 128                
Veterans Approving Agency - Operating FY21 64.124 148,806         

216,604         

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 216,604         

DELTA REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Pass-Through Grants -

Pennyrile Area Development District
Meeting Demands for CDL Training 90.201 KY-54073 13,260           

TOTAL DELTA REGIONAL AUTHORITY 13,260           

CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Opioid Exposure for First Responders 93.136 MOA 2,750             

TOTAL CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION 2,750             

HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Department of Medicaid Services
KY Nurse Aide Training Program 93.778 74620000001684 7,398             
KY Nurse Aide Training Program 93.778 74620000001684 8,215             
   Total Medicaid Assistance Program Cluster 15,613           

St. Claire HealthCare
Medical College Admission Test Project - Gateway 93.130 MOA 1,499             
Medical College Admission Test Project - Southeast 93.130 MOA 1,500             

2,999             

TOTAL HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 18,612           

NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Louisville Research Foundation
Bridges to Baccalaureate 93.859 ULRF 19-0281-01 8,307             

TOTAL NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF HEALTH 8,307             

VOLUNTEER GENERATION FUND
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Campus Compact
Alternative Service Break 94.021 N/A 3,137             

TOTAL VOLUNTEER GENERATION FUND 3,137             

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS 356,556,500$ 
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Subtotals of Multiple Awards  
Rural Business Development Grant 10.351 $ 110,034 
Delta Health Care Services Grant Program 10.874 139,809 
WIA Adult Program  17.258 15,450 
WIA Youth Activities  17.259 391,462 
Modern Apprenticeship Pathways to Success 17.268 183,152 
WIO Dislocated Worker National Reserve 
   Demonstration Grants 17.280 244,031 

 AACC Apprenticeship 17.285 190,362 
Appalachian Regional Development 23.001 115,583 
Appalachian Area Development 23.002 2,586,128 
Appalachian Research, Technical Assistance,  
   and Demonstration Projects  23.011 75,495 
Education and Human Resources 47.076 896,201 
Model State Supported AHEC 93.107  270,310
UK Nursing Grant 93.359 74,100 
STARS Quality Child Care 93.596 119,908 

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the System provided $552,990 in expenditures to subrecipients as follows:  

  Assistance Listing 
Federal Agency/Program Title Number Amount 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Violence Intervention and Prevention    16.525 $ 61,910 

Appalachian Regional Commission 
Creative Capital Investment    23.002 6,759 
KY-WV Regional Drone Project    23.002 199,434 

206,193 
National Science Foundation 

Additive Manufacturing  47.076 47,624 
GeoTech National Center for 
   Excellence    47.076 67,563 

115,187 
U.S. Department of Education 

Northern Regional Migrant 
  Education Grant    84.011 169,700 

 $ 552,990 
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1.   Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award 
activity of the System under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the System, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, 
changes in net assets, or cash flows of the System.   
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The System has 
elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of 
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. 
 
 
2. Testing Populations for Uniform Guidance Testing 
 
The populations used for selecting Uniform Guidance testing samples consisted of system-wide data, which 
includes the following Colleges: 
 
 Ashland Community and Technical College 
 Big Sandy Community and Technical College 
 Bluegrass Community and Technical College 
 Elizabethtown Community and Technical College 
 Gateway Community and Technical College 
 Hazard Community and Technical College 
 Henderson Community College 
 Hopkinsville Community College 
 Jefferson Community and Technical College 
 Madisonville Community College 
 Maysville Community and Technical College 
 Owensboro Community and Technical College 
 Somerset Community College 
 Southcentral Kentucky Community and Technical College 
 Southeast Kentucky Community and Technical College 
 West Kentucky Community and Technical College 
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3.   Federal Student Loan Program 
 
The System participates in the Direct Loan Program (including Direct Unsubsidized Loans for Students, 
and Direct PLUS Loans for parents of undergraduate students). 
 
 Federal Direct Student Loans Program 
  Direct loans 
   Subsidized $ 32,582,533 
   Unsubsidized  33,116,327 
  PLUS  303,980 
 
    $ 66,002,840 
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Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global 

 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial  

Reporting and on Compliance And Other Matters Based on  
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  

With Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
 
Members of the Board of Regents 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System  
Versailles, Kentucky 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities and fiduciary activities of the Kentucky Community and Technical College System (the System), 
a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the System's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 7, 2021.  
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the System’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the System's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Lexington, Kentucky 
October 7, 2021 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major  

Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  
 
 
 
Board of Regents 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System  
Versailles, Kentucky 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the Kentucky Community and Technical College System's (the System) compliance with 
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the System's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2021. The System's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management's Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.  
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the System's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and the Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the System's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the System's compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the System complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2021. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of the System is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the System’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the System’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Lexington, Kentucky 
October 7, 2021
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the      
Financial statements audited were prepared 
In accordance with GAAP:      Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 

Material weakness(es) identified?                Yes      X   No 
 

Significant deficiencies identified not  
considered to be material weaknesses?                 Yes      X   None Reported 

 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?                Yes      X   No 
 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal Control over major programs: 
 

Material weakness(es) identified?                Yes      X    No 
 

Significant deficiencies identified not  
considered to be material weaknesses?           Yes      X   None Reported 

 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for  
major programs:      Unmodified  
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be  
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?            Yes       X  No 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster    
21.019    COVID-19 – Coronavirus Relief Fund 
 
    Student Financial Assistance Cluster 
84.007       Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 
84.033       Federal Work-Study Program 
84.063        Federal Pell Grant Program 
84.268          Federal Direct Student Loans 
 
84.031    Higher Education Institutional Aid  
 
84.425    COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund  
  
93.558    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families     
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:  $3,000,000  
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?         X    Yes         No 
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Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
None noted.  
 
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None noted.



KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
OFFICERS OF THE KCTCS BOARD OF REGENTS, KCTCS BOARD OF REGENTS 

 AND KCTCS PRESIDENT’S CABINET 

86 

Officers of the KCTCS Board of Regents 
Dr. Gail R. Henson, Chair 
Ms. Lisa V. Desmarais, Vice Chair 
Ms. Wynetta J. Fletcher, Secretary 

KCTCS Board of Regents 
Dr. Gail R. Henson 
Ms. Lisa V. Desmarais 
Ms. Wynetta J. Fletcher 
Mr. Damon V. Allen 
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Dr. Angela Fultz 
Mr. Ntambidila Gbili 
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